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Calendar
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EVENT DATE S H

Announcement of interim results 24 August 2012 REfEE NG —EF——F)IHA=-1+mH
Announcement of annual results 22 March 2013 PEEENE —E-—=ZF=H—+—H
Despatch of annual report to 23 April 2013 MBRRKEFHR —FT—=FOH-+=H

shareholders
Closure of register of members for 20 May 2013 to 24 May 2013  E{E#IERMBF —E—=FAA_-+HZF

ascertaining shareholders’ right to (both days inclusive) BRUNEERR —E—=FAH—+/MH
attend and vote at annual general HERRBAFEK (HEGEMH)
meeting WA LIRS
BRI
Annual general meeting 24 May 2013 IRERBEFE R —E—=—FAH=FH
Closure of register of members 30 May 2013 to 31 May 2013 ~ Ei=@iIfk i —E—=#FaH=1+HZ
for ascertaining shareholders’ (both days inclusive) BRRUEERE —E—=FaHA=+—H
entitlement to the proposed final EEEBEANR (EFEERH)
dividend B
Final dividend at HK9.7 cents on or before 17 June 2013 KB R AR B —E—ZFNNA+EA

per share payable

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR E R A |

BFRZO.7

ZHT



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

NEW ERA OF DEVELOPMENT:
GEOGRAPHIC EXPANSION, ACCELERATED
GROWTH AND COOPERATION WITH
QUALITY INTERNATIONAL PARTNER

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Tang Palace
(China) Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
(“FY2012").

A YEAR OF STEADY GROWTH AMID CHALLENGES

2012 was a year of challenges for the catering industry in China.
In addition to slow economic growth leading to weak consumption
sentiment, industry players faced swelling operating costs as a result
of inflationary pressure, annual rise in minimum wages and escalating
rent.

As a key player that has been operating in China since the early
90’s, we have overcome numerous obstacles over the years through
unwavering determination, and 2012 was no exception. The multi-
brand strategy that has led to our success remains an important
part of our competitive edge. The diverse cuisine offered via our four
Chinese restaurant brands and Pepper Lunch have ensured more
balanced and stable revenue streams as well as enhanced the market
presence of the Group as a whole. Consequently, we were able to
achieve double-digit revenue growth despite the adverse market
conditions.

From a solid foundation and extensive restaurant network, we
have been able to further strengthen our Chinese cuisine business.
Employing a proactive expansion plan, new outlets were opened at
prime locations at high-end hotel groups that target high spending
business and large enterprise customers. Our growing restaurant
network has expanded geographically as well. We have tapped the
booming Macau market by opening our first Chinese restaurant at the
Venetian Macao Resort Hotel, which is a renowned international hotel
chain. The close ties forged with leading hotel and property groups
underscore the high quality of our food and services which helped
cement such partnerships.
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Chairman’s Statement F /&5

Consistent with the Group’s conviction to follow a multi-brand
strategy, it has been seeking different business opportunities that
further diversify its catering business and broaden its revenue
streams. Such efforts have begun to bear fruit as we formed a
strategic alliance during the year with PappaRich Group, a popular
Malaysian brand and leading food and beverage chain operator.
We will draw from our extensive catering experience to introduce
PappaRich’s trendy Southeast Asian dining experience to Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau.

While PappaRich represents an exciting new development of the
Group, we are also pleased to see the Pepper Lunch operation make
further strides forward. Revenue has steadily risen as we accelerated
the introduction of more restaurants, which totaled 14 as at the end
of 2012. With brand awareness of Pepper Lunch growing stronger,
as we had anticipated, and with the addition of the PappaRich brand
to the portfolio, we are well positioned to better capture domestic
consumption demand, particularly among young diners.

While implementing our multi-brand strategy is imperative, enhancing
operational efficiency and thus optimizing profitability is also at the
top of the agenda. The Group is decisive on further improving its
efficiency by greater central procurement and adoption of effective
cost control measures to tackle rising costs as well as to stabilize
labor supply.

In light of the Group’s steady growth in FY2012 and its healthy
financial position, the Board recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK9.7 cents per share for FY2012, representing a payout
ratio of 60%.

OUTLOOK

In view of the rapidly changing food and beverage industry in China,
the Group will respond to market movements through a combination
of shrewd management and operational excellence. Our thorough
understanding of China’s food and beverage industry will give us the
edge to rise above any challenges; proceeding forward with even
greater momentum. We remain optimistic about future consumption
sentiment while the solid foundation that we have built will allow us to
sustain growth over the long term.

To capture opportunities on the horizon, expansion of the Group
will continue across a number of fronts. Apart from opening more
restaurants, we will enhance efficiency still further. This will involve
upgrading the centralized procurement and food production systems
at our food plant, and improving our food products and menus.
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With regards to casual dining, we expect this area of interest to be
of increasing importance in the coming years, providing a stable
and considerable source of revenue to the Group. In respect of
PappaRich, we will step up efforts to launch the first restaurant under
this brand in a first-tier city in China, which will help increase our
market share and diversify our customer base.

Leveraging our extensive network and enhanced profitability, we
are set to capture opportunities that emerge in China’s food and
beverage industry. This will act as the catalyst for our further growth
and enable us to maximize returns to our shareholders in the coming
years.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
and appreciation to the management and staff for their dedication
during the year. | would also like to thank the Group’s shareholders,
customers, suppliers, business partners and government authorities
for their continued trust and support over the years.

Yip Shu Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R M AT

() = No. of Restaurants as at 31 December 2012
()=BE-T——F+-A=+—HZEBE%A

Ax#e Tang Palace Seafood Restaurant

= =N 182)1| B AR

EEER Tang'’s Cuisine

EEER B pems
Tang Palace Restaurant @) Pepper Lunch
ERE EEE S Pepper
BUSINESS REVIEW

As the recovery of the global economy remains uncertain, it is only
natural that the China economy reflected a relatively slower growth
in 2012. According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China,
the Gross Domestic Product in 2012 was RMB51,932.2 billion,
or increased by 7.8%, as compared to the year-on-year growth
of 9.3% in 2011. The growth rate of total retail sales of consumer
goods in 2012 recorded 14.3%, as compared to 17.1% in 2011. The
Consumer Price Index growth rate has also shown a decline, from
4.5% in 2011 to 2.5% in 2012. Despite the slowdown of China’s
economic growth, the Chinese government’s Twelfth Five-Year
Plan (2011-2015) highlighted the importance on creating domestic
demand on retail sector, which mirrored the potential growth of the
industry in coming years.
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With expectation on the future capacity of China’s food & beverage
industry, we had been consistently fine tuning our business strategy
to respond to the changes in the market. In doing so, during the year,
we opened 3 Chinese restaurants and 8 Pepper Lunch restaurants,
and also completed renovation of 2 Chinese restaurants in Beijing and
Shanghai, as well as reallocated 1 Chinese restaurant in Shenzhen.
The Group achieved a consolidated revenue of RMB824.7 million
for the FY2012, showing an increase of 10.5%, as compared to
RMB746.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 (“FY2011”).
Operating margin remained stable, recorded 59.0% for FY2012. Profit
for the year amounted to RMB54.8 million, showing an increase of
8.1%, as compared to RMB50.7 million for FY2011. Basic earnings
per share for FY2012 was RMBO0.132, as compared to RMB0.133 for
FY2011.

As at 31 December 2012, we operated 38 restaurants located in
Beijing, Tianjin, Shanghai, Suzhou, Hangzhou, Dongguan, Shenzhen
and Macau. In addition, we have 1 food plant in Shanghai, providing
food production such as seasonal products to our restaurants.

Chinese Restaurant Business

Chinese cuisine remains as our core business. We are currently
operating 22 Chinese restaurants under 4 different brands, which
contributed 94.0% of the Group’s revenue, with total revenue of
RMB774.9 million in FY2012 (FY2011: RMB721.1 million), showing
7.5% increase as compared to FY2011. We continue to build a
close and trustworthy relationship with renowned hotel management
groups and nationwide large scaled property groups for new store
locations. During the year, we opened 3 Chinese restaurants, which
were all located in national and international high-end hotels, including
one Tang's Cuisine newly opened in Venetian Macao Resort Hotel (2

FIELE AT AJERAEJE) in October 2012.
Casual Dining Business

We have continued to aggressively pursue our strategy to enlarge
our customer base and increase our market share by developing
the casual dining business. As the awareness and reputation of
Pepper Lunch grows, we have accelerated our opening plan. During
the year, 8 Pepper Lunch restaurants were opened in Beijing,
Tianjin and Shanghai, bringing the total number of outlets to 14 as
at 31 December 2012. Pepper Lunch recorded a total revenue of
RMB36.3 million for FY2012, showing a year-on-year growth of
215.7%, as compared to RMB11.5 million for FY2011. In another
initiative to expand our market share, in May 2012, we entered into a
Shareholders’ Agreement with PappaRich Group, one of the leading
brands in the local food and beverage chain in Malaysia, aimed at
introducing a trendy Southeast Asian dining experience into Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau, with strong believe in capturing the
tremendous domestic consumption demand in the regions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I & 515w M 24T

The table below summarised, average spending per customer
(including gross revenue from dining and tea related products), and
percentage of revenue contributed to the Group by major brands:

No. of restaurants
as at 31 December
2012 2011

EEZH
R+=BA=+—8

—F——4F

—E—_—F

Tang Palace Seafood Restaurant 14 13
J S e S A7

Tang’s Cuisine 5 2
EEEH

Excellent Tang Palace 2 2
RittEE

Tang Palace Restaurant 1 2
=k

Pepper Lunch 14 6
TARERE

Procurement and Logistics

Our target to expand the scale of central procurement continues to
be one of our major goals. It is essential for us to ensure food safety,
a reliable supply of quality food, as well as cost control. To achieve
efficient management of such, we maintain a close relationship
with our long term business partners such as COFCO Food Sales
& Distribution Co. Ltd. (g R A E#E AR Q7)) and Yihai Kerry
Food Sales & Distribution Co., Ltd. G5/8= 2R %ER A7), in the
meantime, while evaluating different suppliers for our constantly
diversified menu, we are also in negotiations with several well-known
chain suppliers to expand the variety and quantity of food purchasing.
In addition, we invested in upgrading our ERP system and further
enhanced our procurement staff’s skill and knowledge accordingly, to
better cope with our increasing amount of central procurement and to
better manage our supply chain.

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED EB'E (FFEl){ZIRER AT

Average spending

for the year ended
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Percentage of
revenue contributed
to the Group
for the year ended
31 December

per customer

31 December

2012 2011
BEAMHEEZE WEBEDEEE

+ZA=+—HIEEE +=ZA=+—HILEE

—F——F

RMB RMB

ARME AR#&
165.3 160.0 66.1% 67.2%
331.2 326.7 11.8% 10.1%
102.4 92.0 8.9% 9.6%
109.4 104.8 7.2% 9.7%
41.8 45.9 4.4% 1.5%
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Quality Control and 5S Management mEEHKR5SEE

Since its implementation in 2003, 5S management has been playing B -ZZEE=F#HTREZEH LK - 5SEEBR
an important role in our quality control. For nearly a decade, we  FFIAY MBS A EIEE NA] s ERA AL o 3T
persisted to advance the system in order to pursue food hygiene, T[] @ BPIBRENZERLE » BIEREWE
work safety, reduce wastage and overall efficiency on inventory 4 « T{ELZE » BB RIES EFEEIR
storage and control. In 2012, all of our 22 Chinese restaurants has ~ &i%#] o« —F——F » HIE 22PN B
passed annual 5S inspection with very satisfactory result. BRI mBRFELSES  HESERMNKE -

Awards and Recognition RIBRET

In 2012, we obtained awards and certifications in respect of our food, W-_Z——%F  HFEE®R  BRELEET@
services and management. The following table sets forth our recent  SAEZ BRI BE - xR TR FITHES

awards and certifications: B HRIE M EE

Award Awarding and Issuing Authority
15 IR

National Outstanding Enterprise China Cuisine Association
PHRERXEFEE PEREE S

2011 National Top 100 Catering Services Award China Cuisine Association
0MFEFEERBFREE hERE S

China General Chamber of Commerce
FREEBREE

China National Commercial Information Center

FEZEBREST L

National Trustworthy Unit with Quality Services Social Survey Centre
2HEERBEFBEN TEEERHEZES

China Foundation of Consumer Protection

FEREHBEELES®
National Trustworthy Brand on Consumer Protection Social Survey Centre
EBAMVREEBERSERDE HEEEREEZES
China Foundation of Consumer Protection
PEREREEESE
Best Model Brand of Customer Satisfactory on Service Sector Survey Associate of National Customer
2B RARTE A TR B R o 8 Satisfactory on Service Sector

2ERBELRNEE AL EPDEALZES
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I & 515w M 24T

Awarding and Issuing Authority

EEHEE

National Most Influential Leading Brand in the Industry
TESETENEERE

2012 Gourmet’s Favorite Restaurant
012F B EHERER

Outlook

We will continue our strategy of steadily developing Chinese cuisines
and aggressively speeding up the development in the causal dining
business to cater for the constant changing food and beverage
market. We will proactively respond to the market and adjust our
development strategies accordingly.

In addition to selecting location for new restaurants with favourable
terms, we will continue to cooperate with reputable hotel groups
and property groups. We will also select location with size suitable
for boutique type of cuisines, so as to introduce innovative dining
experience to our customers.

We will review our menu continually and adjust our recipes to the
changable customer tastes, so as to expand our customer base
especially to capture young diners and customers with healthy
consciousness. On food cost control, we will expand the scale of
central procurement by continuously putting effort in facilitating
cooperation with large chain suppliers that have numerous distribution
centres in major cities to ensure the quality and quantity of food, as
well as to reduce logistic cost.

In view of the everchanging employment market, we will further
optimise our operational processes and adjust our staff structure. In
addition, the cooperation with hotel and tourism management school
will remain as our major effort on securing stable staff supply and
stabilizing staff cost.

On the other hand, developing causal dining business is our future
highlight. With Pepper Lunch gradually building up its presence,
we believe our strategy on capturing young diners will reach our
expectations. We will accelerate the expansion, as well as preparing
for our first PappaRich Restaurant to launch in a first tier city in China.

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED EB'E (FFEl){ZIRER AT
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by RMB78.5 million, or by 10.5%,
from RMB746.2 million for FY2011 to RMB824.7 million for FY2012,
which was mainly attributable to the revenue growth of the existing
restaurants and the opening of additional 11 restaurants during
the year, including 3 Chinese restaurants and 8 Pepper Lunch
restaurants.

Other income and gain, net

Other income and gains increased by RMB3.8 million, or by 25.9%,
from RMB14.6 million for FY2011 to RMB18.4 million for FY2012.
Such increase was mainly due to the increase in commission income
in respect of sales of tea products and increase in bank interest
income arising from depositing unutilised proceeds from our initial
public offering.

Cost of inventories consumed

Cost of inventories consumed increased by RMB32.2 million, or
by 10.5%, from RMB306.3 million for FY2011 to RMB338.5 million
for FY2012, primarily due to the revenue growth of the existing
restaurants and the opening of the new restaurants. As a percentage
of revenue, cost of inventories consumed decreased slightly from
41.1% for FY2011 to 41.0% for FY2012, revealing preliminary result
of our central procurement system coming into effect in lowering our
cost.

Staff cost

Staff cost increased by RMB33.8 million, or by 19.5%, from
RMB173.1 million for FY2011 to RMB206.9 million for FY2012. As a
percentage of revenue, staff cost increased from 23.2% for FY2011
to 25.1% for the FY2012. The increase in staff cost was primarily
due to an overall increase in the level of salaries and other employee
benefits, as well as increase in staff force which resulted from the
opening of new restaurants.
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Depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment increased
by RMB8.4 million, or by 26.7%, from RMB31.4 million for FY2011
to RMB39.8 million for FY2012. As a percentage of revenue,
depreciation of property, plant and equipment increased from 4.2%
for FY2011 to 4.8% for FY2012. The increase mainly represented
depreciation incurred in connection with the leasehold improvements
and equipment acquired for the new restaurants.

Utilities and consumables

Utilities and consumables increased by RMB6.2 million, or 13.5%,
from RMB46.1 million for FY2011 to RMB52.4 million for FY2012. As
a percentage of revenue, utilities and consumables slightly increased
from 6.2% for FY2011 to 6.3% for FY2012.

Rental and related expenses

Rental and related expenses increased by RMB11.8 million, or by
19.4%, from RMB60.9 million for FY2011 to RMB72.8 million for
FY2012. As a percentage of revenue, rental and related expenses
increased from 8.2% for FY2011 to 8.8% for FY2012. The increase
was mainly attributable to the opening of the new restaurants.

Other expenses

Other expenses, mainly comprising professional fees, sales and
marketing expenses, administrative expenses, donations, bank
charges and miscellaneous expenses, amounted to RMB57.5 million
for FY2012 compared to RMB53.8 million for FY2011.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased by RMB3.6 million, or by 14.8%, from
RMB24.0 million for FY2011 to RMB20.4 million for FY2012, The
Group’s effective income tax rate decreased from 32.1% for FY2011
to 27.1% for FY2012 as a result of more efficient tax planning during
the year.
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Profit for the year

The Group’s profit for the year increased by RMB4.1 million, from
RMB50.7 million for FY2011 to RMB54.8 million for FY2012, mainly
due to increase in revenue during the year and one-off listing and
related expenses of RMB13.7 million was incurred in FY2011.

Cash flow

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by RMB28.2 million from
RMB293.6 million as at 31 December 2011 to RMB265.4 million as
at 31 December 2012,

Net cash of RMB93.5 million was generated from operating activities
for FY2012. Net cash used in investing activities amounted to
RMB91.8 million for FY2012, of which RMB90.6 million related to
the purchase of property, plant and equipment. Net cash used in
financing activities amounted to RMB29.8 million, including dividend
paid amounting to RMB30.5 million.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s funding and treasury activities are managed and
controlled by senior management. The Group maintained cash and
bank balances of RMB265.4 million as at 31 December 2012 (31
December 2011: RMB293.6 million). As at 31 December 2012,
the Group’s total assets, net current assets and net assets were
RMB500.2 million (31 December 2011: RMB455.4 million), RMB182.4
million (31 December 2011: RMB215.9 million) and RMB365.1 million
(81 December 2011: RMB339.3 million), respectively.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s had no bank borrowings (31
December 2011: Nil). The gearing ratio was nil as at 31 December
2012 (31 December 2011: Nil).

As at 31 December 2012, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was 2.4 (31 December 2011: 2.9).

The directors are of the opinion that the Group has sufficient working
capital for the Group’s operations and expansion in the near future.
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Foreign Currency Exposure

The business operations of the Group’s subsidiaries were conducted
mainly in China with revenues and expenses of the Group’s
subsidiaries denominated mainly in RMB. The Group’s cash and
bank deposits were primarily denominated in RMB, with some
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Any significant exchange rate
fluctuations of Hong Kong dollars against RMB as the functional
currency may have a financial impact to the Group.

As at 31 December 2012, the directors considered the Group’s
foreign exchange risk to be insignificant. During the year, the Group
did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

OTHER INFORMATION

Listing of Shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

Trading of shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
commenced on 19 April 2011 (the “Listing Date”). Immediately
upon the listing, the total number of issued shares was 400,000,000
shares.

As part of the initial public offering (“IPO”), the Company has granted
ICBC International Capital Limited, the sole global coordinator under
the IPO, the over-allotment option (the “over-allotment option”) to
cover any over-allocation under the placing tranche of the IPO. On the
Listing Date, the over-allotment option was exercised in full pursuant
to which additional 15,000,000 shares were allotted and issued by
the Company on 26 April 2011. Details of the exercise of the Over-
allotment Option have been set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 20 April 2011.
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Use of IPO Proceeds BXRABREMSRERE

The Company raised an aggregate net proceeds of approximately 1R IE&H A AB B E - A QAR BT A H#
HK$164.2 million from the issuance of an aggregate of 115,000,000  115,000,0000% (&35 1T{E A58 AL AR HE ) B9 A 1D
shares (including exercise of the over-allotment option) pursuant to  E8ERIEFEAS HN16428EBIT - NE
the IPO. Up to 31 December 2012, the Group has used part of the Z-_Z——F+_-A=+—08 KEEDEZ
net IPO proceeds as follows: DERARBEEMSFIEFEARTIIASE

Net IPO proceeds

BRDRBREMSHERE
Utilised Unutilised
Available Available as at Utilised as at
pursuant pursuant 1 January during 31 December
to the IPO to the IPO 2012 FY2012 2012
i
i —E-ZF
BEER BREER =—B-=f +=A
AREE NRBE —-B—-B ZEB-=-f = =
AHA A EBA MBFERA i R E) A
(RMB (RMB (RMB (RMB
(HK$ million million million million
million) equivalent) equivalent) equivalent) equivalent)
(AE™ (AR#% (ARM (ARM
(A8Bn) AEn%E) RER%E) AER%E) BHERZHE)

Opening of about 8 new Chinese RBEET—8R 89.7 75.0 9.0 64.4 16
restaurants in certain first-tier and B mRReHE
second-tier cities in the PRC MPAER
Opening of about 19 Pepper Lunch R EE T 479 40.1 45 16.3 19.3
restaurants in certain first-tier cities a1 OfEI AR
in the PRC BFEE
Sales and marketing promotion and RET—HEmMEE 10.2 85 72 1.3 -
brand awareness activities in certain RisHE
first-tier cities, including launching of BRI RIS
promotional campaigns and RENAZEREE
conducting of market surveys PEREEEED
FETTISHE
General working capital —REELS 16.4 13.7 13.7 - -
Total st 164.2 137.3 34.4 82.0 20.9

The remaining net proceeds are mainly placed in reputable financial ~ FT{S K IE/FENBRR AT D EFAGBERIFH
institutions as short term deposits. DRI IERE TR o
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Number and Remuneration of Employees

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had over 4,000 employees in
Hong Kong, Macau and PRC. The Group recognises the importance
of human resources to its success, therefore qualified and
experienced personnel are recruited for expansion of new restaurants.
Remuneration is maintained at competitive levels with discretionary
bonuses payable on a merit basis and in line with industrial practice.
Other staff benefits provided by the Group include mandatory
provident fund, insurance schemes, share options and performance
related bonus.

Capital Commitment

Our capital commitment were approximately RMB4.4 million and
RMB6.8 million as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011,
respectively.

Charges on Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets (31 December 2011: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Material Acquisitions and Disposal of Subsidiaries and
Associated Companies

During the year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or associated companies of the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the
Company

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEZNEREEABEE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Shu Ming, aged 57, is one of the founders of our Group
and joined our Group in July 1992. Mr. Yip, also the chairman of the
Group, was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
25 March 2011. He is responsible for our Group’s overall corporate
operations, planning and business development. Mr. Yip is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Yip has over 26
years of experience in restaurant business. He worked as general
manager at Fortune City Restaurant, which operated in Hong Kong,
from 1986 to 1995. Mr. Yip is a honorary founding president of
Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association. Mr. Yip is a
honorary president of The Hong Kong Federation of Restaurants &
Related Trades Limited. He is a part-time consultant of the China
Hotel Management Company Limited and a permanent honorary
committee member of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce.
Apart from his interest in our Group, Mr. Yip is also one of the direct
or indirect owners of (i) Well Excellent Development Limited (‘HK Well
Excellent’), an entity held by him for investment holding purpose
and the licenser under the trademark transfer and license agreements
as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of the Company’s prospectus dated 7 April 2011
(the “Prospectus”), and (i) Meco Group Company Limited (“Meco
Group”) and Dongguan Well Excellent Hotel Management Services
Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Well Excellent”), two entities held by him for
property investment and property leasing businesses and the lessors
under various tenancy agreements (collectively, “CCT Tenancy
Agreements”) as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
Report — Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report.
Mr. Yip is the father of Mr. Yip Ka Fai, a member of the senior
management of our Group.

Mr. Chan Man Wai, aged 58, is one of the founders of our Group
and has been with our Group since its establishment in July 1992.
Mr. Chan, also the vice chairman of the Group, was appointed as
an executive director of the Company on 11 March 2010. He is
responsible for our Group’s overall corporate strategic development.
Mr. Chan is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He
has over 29 years of experience in restaurant business. Prior to
the establishment of Meco Petrochemical Limited in 1992, he co-
owned and operated with others the restaurants Fortune Flower Grill
and Lounge and Fortune City Restaurant in Hong Kong between
1983 and 1996. Apart from his interest in the Group, Mr. Chan is
also one of the direct or indirect owners of (i) HK Well Excellent, an
entity held by him for investment holding purpose and the licenser
under the trademark transfer and license agreements as disclosed
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under the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of
the Prospectus, and (i) Meco Group and Dongguan Well Excellent,
two entities held by him for property investment and property leasing
businesses and the lessors under the CCT Tenancy Agreements as
disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ Report — Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this annual report.

Mr. Ku Hok Chiu, aged 67, is one of the founders of our Group,
and was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 25
March 2011. Mr. Ku joined our Group as a shareholder of Meco
Petrochemical Limited since May 1996 and became a director of
Shenzhen Tang Palace F&B Co., Ltd in July 1998. He is responsible
for our Group’s overall corporate strategic development. Mr. Ku has
over 27 years of experience in restaurant business. Prior to joining
the Group, he was one of the indirect owners of Datong Restaurant,
which operated in China, from 1985 to 1997.

Mr. Ku is also engaged in kitchen equipment business in China
through Chiu Kwun Engineering (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Chiu Kwun”),
involving manufacture, sale, installation and maintenance of kitchen
equipment and provision of consultancy services related to kitchen
equipment and kitchen layout. Apart from his interest in the Group,
Mr. Ku is also (i) one of the direct or indirect owners of HK Well
Excellent, an entity held by him for investment holding purpose and
the licenser under the trademark transfer and license agreements
as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of the Prospectus, (i) one of the shareholders of Meco
Group and Dongguan Well Excellent respectively, two entities used
by him for property investment and property leasing and the lessors
under the CCT Tenancy Agreements as disclosed under the section
headed “Directors’ Report — Continuing Connected Transactions”
in this annual report; and (jii) the indirect sole owner of Chiu Kwun,
an entity held by him as the supplier and service provider under the
agreement as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ Report
— Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report.
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Ms. Weng Peihe, aged 42, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 25 March 2011 and has been the chief
executive officer of our Group since March 2000. She joined our
Group in January 1997 and worked as senior manager to general
manager from January 1997 to February 2000. Ms. Weng is primarily
responsible for overseeing our Group’s business development,
market development, human resources, administration and logistics
management. Ms. Weng has over 24 years of experience in the
restaurant industry. Prior to joining the Group, she was engaged by
Dragon Hotel, managed by New World Hotels International in 1988.

Ms. Weng was awarded Excellent Female Entrepreneur in China
Hospitality Industry by the China Hotel Association and China
Finance, Commerce, Light, Textile and Tobacco Trade Union
jointly in 2004. She was elected as one of the 2009-2010 China
Hotel Industry 100 Elites and awarded the Platinum Five-Star
Medal by the China Hotel Industry Annual Conference Organizing
Committee in March 2010. Ms. Weng was awarded as one of the
Outstanding Entrepreneur in China Brand Development for 2010
jointly by China United Business News, Brand Magazine, China
Wisdom Engineering Association, China Academy of Management
Science, China International Brand Academy and National High
Technology Industry Brand Academy in January 2011. Ms. Weng
was also awarded as one of the Outstanding Female Entrepreneur
in Shanghai Restaurant Industry, jointly by China Hotel Association
and Shanghai Restaurant Association in December 2011. Ms. Weng
was awarded 100 Outstanding Female Entrepreneur by China
Outstanding Female Entrepreneur Association in 2012. Ms. Weng
completed the Certificate in Chinese Restaurant Management Course
at the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education in 2002 and the
International Business Management CEO course at the Center for
Overseas Academic and Cultural Exchanges, Tsinghua University in
November 2005. She is currently studying for an executive master’s
degree in business administration at Peking University HSBC School
of Business.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Chi Keung, Jr (Justice of Peace), aged 58, was
appointed as our independent non-executive director on 25 March
2011. Mr. Kwong is qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England,
Australia (Victoria) and Singapore. He is a senior partner of Messrs.
Sit Fung Kwong and Shum. Mr. Kwong had been an independent
non-executive director of (i) Sparkle Roll Group Limited (formerly
known as Global Food Culture Group Limited, Jade Dynasty Food
Culture Group Limited and Jade Dynasty Group Limited respectively)
(Stock Code: 970), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from August 2002 to October 2007 and (ii) Hang
Ten Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 448), a company which
had been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since
October 2002 until it was privatized and delisted with effect from
20 March 2012. Mr. Kwong was a former Deputy Chairman of the
Copyright Tribunal of Hong Kong and a member of the Administrative
Appeals Board and Panel of Inland Revenue Board of Review. Mr.
Kwong is currently the President of the Asian Patent Attorneys
Association, a World Intellectual Property Organization appointed
Neutral for Alternative Dispute Resolution and Uniform Domain Name
Dispute Resolution Policy Panelist, fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators (London) and Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators,
a Chartered Arbitrator, Center for Effective Dispute Resolution
Accredited Mediator, and a Notary Public. He is a listed Arbitrator and
Adjudicator of the Hong Kong International Arbitration Center.

Mr. Kwong obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws (LLB) in November
1976 and a postgraduate certificate in laws (PCLL) in July 1977, both
from the University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Kwong Ping Man, aged 48, was appointed as our independent
non-executive director on 25 March 2011. Mr. Kwong has over 15
years of experience in accounting and administration and is currently
a director of O’Park Corporate Services Limited. He had previously
worked as accountant, company secretary and chief financial officer
at private companies for over 8 years. Mr. Kwong had worked as
financial controller and company secretary of Polyard Petroleum
International Group Limited (formerly known as Kanstar Environmental
Paper Products Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 8011) from March
2006 to July 2007 and Karce International Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 1159) from June 2008 to January 2009, both of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwong had been an independent non-executive director of
Yueshou Environmental Holdings Limited (formerly known as China
Rich Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 1191), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since July 2007 until he retired
from his office in December 2011. He has been an independent
non-executive director of Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 509) (formerly known as Century Sunshine Ecological
Technology Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 8276)) since September
2004, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange until its listing was transferred to the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 1 August 2008. Mr. Kwong has also been an
independent non-executive director of Mitsumaru East Kit (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 2358), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, since March 2009 until he retired from his office
in 2012.

Mr. Kwong obtained a bachelor’s degree in commerce accounting
from Curtin University of Technology in Australia in August 1996, a
Postgraduate diploma in corporate administration (part-time) from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1998 and a master’s
degree in professional accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2003. He is a certified practicing accountant
of the Australian Society of Certified Practicing Accountants (now
known as CPA Australia), a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries & Administrators respectively.
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Mr. Cheung Kin Ting Alfred, aged 57, was appointed as our
independent non-executive director of the Company on 25 March
2011. Mr. Cheung has over 10 years of experience in the Chinese-
style fast food restaurant industry in Hong Kong. From 2002 to
2009, he co-owned and operated with others the Chinese-style fast
food restaurants Cousin Cousin Cafe in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr.
Cheung has licensed the trade name of aforesaid Chinese-style fast
food restaurants to other independent third parties in the PRC at no
charge. Since 2004, Mr. Cheung has been engaged in the provision
of corporate training on communication skills, interpersonal skills and
team building to corporations, including corporations in the restaurant
industry. He is also a film director, script-writer and producer.

He obtained a Diploma of Arts in Chinese Language Literature from
the Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as Hong Kong Baptist
University) in June 1979 and an Executive Master of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in May 2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Chung Yeung, aged 35, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong joined our Group in
January 2012 and is responsible for the overall management of the
Group’s finance and accounting, taxation, information technology,
investor relations and listing compliance functions. He graduated from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999 with a
bachelor’s degree of business administration in accounting and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Wong has over 12 years of experience in finance and accounting
profession. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong worked as a senior
manager in an international accounting firm.
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Mr. Chen Zhi Xiong, aged 42, is the Vice President and the chief
operations officer of our Group. He has been with our Group since
May 2000. Since January 2013, Mr. Chen has become the Vice
President of our Group. He was an editor on the China Hotel and
Catering Industry Book Series Editorial Board from May 2005,
honorary consultant to the Provincial and Hong Kong Gourmet
Weekly from March 2006 and chairman of the Expert Committee
of Zhuhai Food & Beverage Association from June 2006. He was
accredited as China Cooking Master by China Hotel Association in
2003 and accredited National Judge Qualification (Hotel) — First Class
from China Hotel Association in 2004. Mr. Chen was also awarded
the group silver award in the 5th National Cooking Skills Competition
in 2003 by The Organizing Committee of the 5th National Cooking
Skills Competition, the Hong Kong, Guangdong and Macau Top Ten
Chefs 2004 — Gold Award by the Editorial Board of the Hong Kong,
Guangdong and Macau Chefs Ceremony and the Quan Guo Shi Jia
Jin Shao Jiang in the China Hotel System Service Skill Competition
by the China Hotel System Service Skill Competition (Zhongnan
District) Organizing Committee in 2005. He obtained a certificate from
the Nutritional Occupational Skills Testing Authority of the Ministry
of Labor and Social Security for passing the tests for nutritionist
and Chinese cook in December 2005 and June 2007 respectively.
In 2006, he was awarded a Diploma of Membership by Les Amis
d’Escoffier Society, Inc. (now known as Les Amis d’Escoffier Society
of New York, Inc.) as Honorary Chairman. Mr. Chen completed
the ERS 5S Management Certificate Course from the Hong Kong
Environmental Resource and Safety Institute in April 2009.

Mr. Liu Shu Feng, aged 44, is the general manager of the
engineering department of our Group. He has been with our Group
since 1997. He worked as manager of the finance department of the
Guangdong region from 1997 to 2008; manager of the procurement
department of the Guangdong region from 1997 to 2004 and as a
restaurant manager at one of our Group’s restaurants from 2004
to 2005. Since 2008, Mr. Lau has been the general manager of the
engineering department of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked at Shenzhen Fortune City Restaurant from 1994 to 1996.
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Mr. Yip Ka Fai (“Mr. KF Yip”), aged 31, is the general manager
of Vital Pepper (Beijing) Management Co., Ltd. and a director of
Pepper Lunch (Shanghai) F&B Management Co., Ltd. He joined
the administration department of our Group in August 2008. Mr.
KF Yip worked at Tao Heung Group Limited as assistant, business
management from August 2007 to July 2008. Mr. KF Yip was
awarded the Professional Diploma in Chinese Catering Management
by the Vocational Training Council in July 2008. Mr. KF Yip is the son
of Mr. Yip Shu Ming, one of our executive directors.

Ms. Li Yan, aged 38, is the head of the human resources
department of our Group. She has been with our Group since March
2008 and worked as the general manager of the human resources
department from March 2008 to March 2010. Ms. Li has been the
head of the human resources department of our Group since April
2010. Prior to joining our Group, she worked as customer service
officer, trainer, training manager to senior training manager at TIPTOP
Consultants Ltd from 2001 to 2007. Ms. Li graduated from the East
China University of Science and Technology with a master’s degree
in engineering (majoring in inorganic non-metallic materials) in June
1998.
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Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance practices to safeguard the interests of Company and
the shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
These can be achieved by an effective Board, segregation of duties
with clear responsibility, sound internal control, appropriate risk
assessment procedures and transparency to all the shareholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and Corporate Governance
Code (effective from 1 April 2012)) throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is in charge of the task of maximizing the financial
performance of the Group and making decisions in the best interest
of the Company. The Board is responsible for formulating business
policies and strategies, monitoring the performance of the senior
management of the Company, adopting and monitoring internal
business and management control, approving and monitoring annual
budgets and business plans, reviewing operational and financial
performance, considering dividend policy, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s systems of financial control and risk management.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation and execution
of Board policies and strategies to the executive directors and
management of the Company.

As at 31 December 2012, the Board consists of seven members,
including four executive directors, Mr. Yip Shu Ming (Chairman),
Mr. Chan Man Wai (Vice-Chairman), Mr. Ku Hok Chiu, Ms. Weng
Peihe (Chief Executive Officer), and three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Kwong Chi Keung, Mr. Kwong Ping Man and Mr.
Cheung Kin Ting Alfred. Biographical details of each of the directors
are set out on pages 19 to 26. There is no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship among members of the Board.

All executive directors have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a specific term of three years commencing from 25
March 2011, which shall be renewed and extended automatically
for successive terms of one year upon expiry of the then current
term until terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ written notice expiring at the end of the initial term of their
appointment or any time thereafter to the other.
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In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive directors, one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting and
financial management. All the independent non-executive directors
have confirmed in writing to the Company that they have met all the
guidelines for assessing their independence as set out in rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. All independent non-executive directors have
entered into letters of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of two years commencing from 25 March 2011, which shall be
renewed and extended automatically for successive terms of one year
upon expiry of the then current term until terminated by either party
giving not less than one month’s written notice expiring at the end of
the initial term of their appointment or any time thereafter to the other.

One-third of the directors are subject to retirement from office by
rotation at the annual general meeting provided that every director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(“Articles of Association”).

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
given sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the Group. Independent
non-executive directors have provided the Board with their diversified
expertise, experience and professional advice. The Board believes
that the ratio between executive directors and independent non-
executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
checks and balances that safeguard the interests of shareholders
of the Company and of the Group. The Board also believes that the
views and participation of the independent non-executive directors in
the Board and committee meetings provide independent judgment
on the issues relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest and
management process to ensure that the interests of all shareholders
of the Company are considered and safeguarded.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information in
relation to the Group’s businesses and affairs as well as unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the company secretary,
who is responsible for providing directors with board papers and
related materials. The directors may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against directors arising out of corporate activities.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board held four
regular Board meetings. At these regular Board meetings, directors
discussed and exchanged their views on significant issues and
general operations of the Group, formulated business policies and
strategies, reviewed the financial performance and approved the
interim result of the Company for the six months ended 30 June
2012, as well as endorsed the Company policy to establish controls
for monitoring business and corporate developments and events
so that any potential inside information is promptly identified and
escalated.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in paragraph D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
and in this regard the duties of the Board shall include:

@)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and the senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report as referred to in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board considered the following
corporate governance matters:

adoption of revised code provisions set out in Corporate
Governance Code;

adoption of revised terms of reference for audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee;

establishment of shareholders' communication policy; and

adoption of procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a director.
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The Board, through the audit committee, has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2012 covering all material financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions, and is
satisfied that such systems are effective and adequate.

Attendance of the individual directors at the regular Board meetings
and general meeting for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out
as follows:

Executive directors

HiTEF

Mr. Yip Shu Ming (Chairman)
ERIRLE(FE)

Mr. Chan Man Wai (Vice-chairman)
BRIB & (BIEE)

Mr. Ku Hok Chiu

EE i

Ms. Weng Peihe (Chief Executive Officer)
S|MRL L (TTBAEZ)

Independent Non-Executive directors

BUHHITEE

Mr. Kwong Chi Keung
BEm kL

Mr. Kwong Ping Man
RBR S SE A

Mr. Cheung Kin Ting Alfred
SRERBE ST A4

At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of regular Board meeting
is given to all directors and an agenda together with board papers
are sent to all directors no less than three days before the date of
regular Board meeting. All directors are given opportunity to include
in the agenda any other matter that they would like to discuss in the
meeting. With respect to the Board committee meeting, reasonable
prior notice is given to all committee members. All directors and
committee members of the Board committee are urged to attend
the Board meeting and Board committee meeting in person. For the
directors and committee members, who are unable to attend the
meeting, participation through electronic means will be arranged and
available.
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Meeting
Attended/Total
REKE
HERE B

Regular Board
Meetings

Attended/Total
EEgcHEeR
HERE, B

4/4 1/1
4/4 1/1
4/4 1/1
4/4 1/1
4/4 1/1
4/4 1/1
4/4 1/1
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Should a director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter being
considered in the Board meeting, he will be abstained from voting.
Independent non-executive directors with no conflict of interest will be
present at meetings dealing with such conflict of interest issues.

The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board in
preparation of the agenda for the Board meeting and Board
committee meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations regarding the Board meeting are followed. He also
prepares and keeps detailed minutes of each Board meeting and
Board committee meeting. Within a reasonable time after each
meeting, the draft minutes are circulated to all directors or committee
members for comment and the final and approved version of minutes
is sent to all directors or committee members for their records. Board
committees, including the audit committee, nomination committee
and remuneration committee, all follow the applicable principles,
practices and procedures used in Board meetings.

The Company has received from all directors records of their
continuous professional development training for the year ended 31
December 2012 . Details of which are set out in below table:

Mr. Yip Shu Ming
ERIREE

Mr. Chan Man Wai
PR fZ

Mr. Ku Hok Chiu
HEBEE

Ms. Weng Peihe
SR L

Mr. Kwong Chi Keung
BPERTA

Mr. Kwong Ping Man
RBR S SE A

Mr. Cheung Kin Ting Alfred
SRERRESE A

HEFREEEEH LAWNERBEENT
BmER EBHRERE  UYEMNDSEHRNEL
FNTEFALFER  BEXFNEERN
ER

RAMEBHESFSIREBEFTENESRE
BEgeaalE MRETHEEHMESS S
MERARRNER - RITREFEREFEZE
SERFLFHERLCE - FRCBENERS
REBREHFERERNAERBANREMEES
SLREEREEH  UHAESHZEENER
HER - MEBRLCFRLEIEORAN G ER
FMEEFEXZBEEREFTHR EFZEE -
BREZZES REXZEe ¥FMHZEE -
BETEESARANERRA - BREE
B o

AAREWEHEZE-_E——F+-_A=+—H
T FEMBEEMNHFERELREEZIILE &
BHEHT

Type of Continuous
Professional Development

BEEXRRER
Reading
Attending regulatory
seminar on updates or
regulatory information
development relevant to
and the Company
directors' duties or its business

HESE

EERER EEERY
EEREN BAELQFD
g HEBNER
v v
v v
v v
v v
v v
v v
v v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Yip Shu Ming is the chairman of the Board and Ms. Weng
Peihe is the chief executive officer of the Company, in compliance
with the Code Provision A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The divisions of responsibilities between the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company are clearly divided
to ensure a balance of power and authority and to reinforce their
independence and accountability.

Mr. Yip Shu Ming, being the chairman, is responsible for providing
leadership to the Board and ensuring that the Board functions
effectively; that directors receive in timely manner adequate
information which is complete and reliable and that all directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The chairman
also encourages directors to participate actively in and to make a full
contribution to the Board’s affairs so that the Board acts in the best
interest of the Company.

Ms. Weng Peihe, being the chief executive officer of the Company,
is responsible for the daily operations of the Company, execution of
business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as formulated and
adopted by the Board and leading the management of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR THE SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL
CODE”)

The Company has adopted its own code for securities transactions by
directors on terms no less exacting than the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific
enquiries to all of the directors and all of the directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking from the Listing Date to the date of this
report.

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR E R A |

EFERTHAR

EEAEEREZTEEIR  FERLLTREAR
BIITIRAREL - 79 & LT AR RIS &%+ P 57 RIS
FA21MGF - RRBEFGEFE RITHAAE B
5iRkEE D WEENLBESDTE ARk
negsEss 1t M ENE o

TREHARERECEES S NRRESS
BREE  YRREFERPITRE  ZEK
AEMER  THEASESSTEFSESEN
WOHE -  TENXBEEFRE2ELEE2N
BAEZEFH  BRLEFEUARANK
R ARRER

ARBITHARPBEARALRLTAEARARBNEE
B REHREFTSHIE MRAREHEE
KA - BIRNABIARBERRRIEEAR ©

BT ETRTAESETESXGZ2RET
BT R2EF A D)

ARBEREFETESFXHEMEARF KT
Al - RN T AR RIBH 8% 4R 2 <7 Rl P &K
MR - AARIERERESFLAREN
MEREFCHEIARSNAFEDETREST
ARSI 2 MERZE

BT TRFER
ARPCDEEERERAEEE L ARES

AR3RE B RSP R FORGE IR KT 3 I B RERR
2 o



DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2012 which are given a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at that date and of the Group’s results
and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared on
the going concern basis in accordance with the applicable statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The directors, having made
appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company acknowledging
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee, to
oversee the particular aspect of the Company’s affairs. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties.

On 28 March 2012, the Board adopted the new sets of written terms
of reference of each of the Board committees of the Company.
The new sets of written terms of reference are in line with the
amendments to the Listing Rules which became effective as of 1
April 2012. The new written terms of reference of each of the Board
committees of the Company had been posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on 30 March 2012.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The Company established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules pursuant to a resolution of our directors passed on
25 March 2011. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
(as amended on 28 March 2012) are available on the Company’s
website. The Audit Committee comprises three members who are
all independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Kwong Ping
Man (the chairman), Mr. Kwong Chi Keung and Mr. Cheung Kin Ting
Alfred. The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is delegated
by the Board to assess matters related to the financial statements.
Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required to
perform, amongst the others, the following duties:

° making recommendation to the Board on appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of that external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

° ensuring that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system; and

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual reports and accounts and half-year report.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, two Audit Committee
meetings were held and all minutes were kept by the company
secretary. The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Company and the unaudited
interim results and interim report of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2012 as well as assessed the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems. The Audit
Committee reported that there was no material uncertainty that casts
doubt on the Company’s going concern ability.
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Attendance of individual members of the Audit Committee at #HZE-—Z——F+-_A=+—HIFEEZE
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out as follows:  E@ @RIk 8 EfE &@maaceEs&zmT ¢

Meetings
Committee Members Attended/Total
ZEERE HERE A
Mr. Kwong Ping Man (Chairman) 2/2
BRRSCAEHE(F )
Mr. Kwong Chi Keung 2/2
it St
Mr. Cheung Kin Ting Alfred 2/2
RERRER A

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 1% B B 32 B

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors is set out as St~ AR A INE % BRAT 7 FrENEH 20 T -
follows:

Fee paid/payable
Bft ENER
Deloitte
Ernst & Touche
Young Tohmatsu

RK EHeHERS
EEHEE AT BEHRDTT
2012 2011

— —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT R

Type of service: ARt ER
Audit services BB 650 2,646
Non-audit services (Including tax advisory FEBEZRG (BIERBE SRR
and tax compliance services) RIS ARTS) 325 -
Total #Et 975 2,646
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee
(‘Remuneration Committee”) on 25 March 2011 with written terms
of reference in accordance with the Code Provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
(as amended on 28 March 2012) are available on the Company’s
website. The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include but not limited to make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages
relating to all directors and senior management of our Group and
ensure none of the directors determine their own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members who are all
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Kwong Chi Keung
(the chairman), Mr. Kwong Ping Man and Mr. Cheung Kin Ting Alfred.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held to review the remuneration packages
of the directors. No recommendation was made to the Board for
change of the remuneration of all directors.

Attendance of individual members of the Remuneration Committee at
meeting for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out as follows:

Committee Members

¥FMEES
ARBR-ZB——F=A-_+HARBELETR
AP R+ PO PR R BV B R ST RIZ 5P R
XkuHMERE e ((HMEEE])  WAEE
FIHERBERE - HFMZEenBRaE(ER
TR CF AT N\BEREHEHNARE
Wk FTHEZEENEIRRABRETRNEL
AEEEBEFTNSREEABEBHFIMNER
ERERFMGFERNESSREER  URHE
REEMEETAGNTH - FHEE S
—HKE ARBIUFNTES  HHIRRE
SREE(ERE) B EERRBERE -

R-ZE——F+-A=+T—BLEEFEFMEE
ERTT-RFMEESeR  EHEFNH
S8 -  FNEZE L EAEESTNHMA
SEEeRhBERS -

B2 -_Z——F+-A=1+—BHILFEHFMZ
BE@EBIKELESRNCESTIT

Meetings

Attended/Total

ZEEME

Mr. Kwong Chi Keung (Chairman)
BB EE(FE)

Mr. Kwong Ping Man

RBR e

Mr. Cheung Kin Ting Alfred
SRERBE ST

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band is set out below:

HERE, AR
1/1
1/1
1/1

BE-T-—F+-A=T-BLFEBERE
B ABZHMARIMT :

Number of

persons

Remuneration band (RMB) HEAHER(ARE) A
Nil to 1,000,000 £ 51,000,000 4
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 % 1,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding the directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 25 March 2011 with written terms of reference in
accordance with the Recommended Best Practices in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
(as amended on 28 March 2012) are available on the Company’s
website. The Nomination Committee is responsible for, including
but not limited to, making recommendations to the Board regarding
candidates to fill vacancies of the Board. The Nomination Committee
comprises three members who are all independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Cheung Kin Ting Alfred (the chairman), Mr.
Kwong Ping Man and Mr. Kwong Chi Keung.

In reviewing and recommending the appointment of new directors,
the Nomination Committee would seek to identify the competencies
required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities. The resume
or document of the nominee or candidate will be given to the
Nomination Committee for consideration. The Nomination Committee
has adopted a process for selection and appointment of new
directors which provides the procedure for identification of potential
candidates, evaluation of the suitability of the candidate based on
his qualifications, skills knowledge, business and related experience,
commitment, ability to contribute to the Board process and such
qualities and attributes that may be required by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held by the Nomination Committee,
members of the Nomination Committee have reviewed the
composition of the Board which is determined by directors’ skills
and experience appropriate to the Company’s business and the
nomination policy of the Company.

Attendance of individual members of the Nomination Committee at
meeting for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out as follows:

Committee Members
ZEENE

Mr. Cheung Kin Ting Alfred (Chairman)
RERESA (L)

Mr. Kwong Ping Man

RBR S5 A

Mr. Kwong Chi Keung

RSB SE A
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

The following procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM of the
Company are prepared in accordance with Articles 64 of the Articles
of Association:

(1)  One or more shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings, shall have the right, by written notice, to
require an EGM to be called by the directors for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the directors or
the company secretary of the Company and lodged with (i) the
head office and (i) the registered office of the Company in the
Cayman Islands at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

(8)  The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

(4) If the directors fail to proceed to convene the EGM within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the Requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for shareholders
to put forward proposals at general meetings other than a proposal
of a person for election as director. Shareholders may follow the
procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

The following procedures for a shareholder of the Company to
propose a person for election as a director of the Company are
prepared in accordance with article 110 of the Articles of Association:

A shareholder may propose a person (“Candidate”) for election as
a director at a general meeting by lodging the following documents
within the period mentioned below at the head office and principle
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 3 on 10th
Floor, Greenfield Tower, Concordia Plaza, No.1 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong or the branch share registrar and transfer
office (‘Hong Kong Share Registrar”) of the Company in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong:

(@  awritten notice (“Proposal Notice”) of the intention to propose
the Candidate for election as a Director, which must (i) state
the information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules, which is available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkex.com.hk) and (i) must be signed by the
shareholder; and

(b) a written notice (“Consent Notice”) by the Candidate, which
must () indicate his/her willingness to be elected as a Director
and consent to the publication of his/her personal information as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (i) must be
signed by the Candidate.

The Proposal Notice and the Consent Notice shall be lodged with
the head office or the Hong Kong Share Registrar of the Company
for a period of at least seven (7) clear days commencing no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
and ending no later than seven (7) clear days before the date of such
general meeting.

To enable the shareholders to make an informed decision on
their election at a general meeting, the Company shall publish
an announcement or issue a supplemental circular as soon as
practicable after the receipt of the Proposal Notice and the Consent
Notice. The Company shall include particulars of the Candidate in the
announcement or the supplementary circular.
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The Company shall assess whether or not it is necessary to adjourn
the general meeting of the election to give shareholders at least ten (10)
business days to consider the relevant information disclosed in the
announcement or supplemental circular.

The aforesaid procedures have been uploaded to the Company’s
website.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders' Enquiries to the
Board

To direct enquiries to the Board, the shareholders should submit his/
her enquiries in writing with his/her detailed contact information to the
company secretary at the following:

By post to the Head Office

Tel: (852) 2180-7055

Fax: (8562) 2180-7056

Email: info@tanggong.cn
Website: http://www.tanggong.cn

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that sound and effective internal
control systems are maintained within the Group. The Company
has formed an internal control committee (the “Internal Control
Committee”) in January 2011, comprising the chief executive officer
and chief financial officer of the Company, an external PRC legal
counsel engaged by the Company in March 2011, and Mr. Kwong
Ping Man (the independent non-executive director, who possesses
relevant experience to review and assess the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Company’s internal control measures on a quarterly
basis). The Internal Control Committee is also responsible for the
implementation of the remedial plans recommended by the internal
audit department, so as to ensure our compliance with the Listing
Rules and the relevant PRC laws and regulations. Any deficiencies
noted during the review process will be addressed to the Board
and the Audit Committee. The Company has also established an
internal audit department in March 2011. The internal audit manager
is professionally qualified with relevant experience to monitor and
oversee daily operation of internal control matters. The internal audit
department will report to the Audit Committee to ensure operations
in compliance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations, and
recommend remedial plans to the Audit Committee.
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The Company has engaged internal control advisors to conduct semi-
annual review for at least one year after the listing. The review will
focus on the status of implementation of the recommended remedial
actions in areas where deficiencies and weaknesses were identified,
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control measures
implemented at each of its restaurants, and the standards and
effectiveness of the Company’s corporate governance, operations
and management to ensure our compliance with the Listing Rules
and the applicable PRC laws and regulations.

The Board and Audit Committee conducted a review and assessment
of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions for the year ended 31 December 2012. The
assessment was made by discussions with the management of
the Company and its external and internal auditors. The Board are
satisfied that the existing internal control system is adequate and
effective in order to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interests.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining effective
mutual communication with its shareholders and values every
opportunity to communicate with them. The Company has adopted
a policy of disclosing clear and relevant information to shareholders
through various channels in a timely manner. Annual and interim
reports are printed and sent to all shareholders by post as requested.
The Company has also complied with provisions of the Listing
Rules by posting announcements, notices, annual reports, interim
reports and shareholders’ circulars on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company (http://www.tanggong.cn). Apart from
these documents, press releases and newsletters are posted on the
Company’s website to enhance its transparency. Being constantly
updated in a timely manner, the website also contains a wide range
of additional information on Company’s business activities.

In addition to publication of information, the annual general meeting
of the Company provides a forum for communication between
shareholders and directors. The chairman of the Board in person
chairs the annual general meeting to ensure shareholders’ views
are communicated to the Board. Moreover, the briefing on the
Company’s business and the questions and answer session at the
annual general meeting allow shareholders to stay informed of the
Group’s strategies and goals.
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In addition to the chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Board
committees, or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees and the external auditors of the Company, are available
to answer any queries that shareholders may have. The chairman
of the Board will propose separate resolutions for each issue to be
considered at the annual general meeting.

The annual general meeting proceedings are reviewed from time to
time to ensure that the Company follows best corporate governance
practices and shareholders’ rights are preserved. Notice of annual
general meeting is delivered to all shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the date of the annual general meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolution and other relevant
information. The procedures for demanding and conducting a poll
will be explained by the chairman of the Board at the annual general
meeting. Poll results are to be released by way of publication of an
announcement.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company and
registered in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of Cayman Islands on 11 March 2010. Pursuant to the
corporate reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”) to rationalise
the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company became
the holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on
25 March 2011. Details of the Group Reorganisation were set out in
the section headed “Statutory and General Information” in Appendix
V of the Prospectus.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 70.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK9.7
cents per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December
2012 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 31 May 2013, amounting to
approximately RMB32,899,000.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the shareholders
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting to be held on 24
May 2013 (“Annual General Meeting”), the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 20 May 2013 to 24 May 2013
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of share(s)
will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, all transfers documents, accompanies by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with Tricor Investor
Services Limited, the branch share registrar and transfer office of the
Company in Hong Kong, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on 16 May 2013.

The proposed final dividend is subject to the passing of an ordinary
resolution by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. For
the purpose of determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 (if approved),
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 30 May
2013 to 31 May 2013 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of share(s) will be effected. To be entitled to the final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (if approved), all transfers
documents, accompanies by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited, the branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong, at 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 29 May 2013.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on pages 147 to 148 of this annual report. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 24(b) to the financial statement and
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2012,
as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB83,569,000. Under
the Companies Law (2011 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and
the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, the share
premium account of the Company, in amount of RMB85,180,000 is
distributable to its shareholders provided that immediately following
the distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions amounted
to RMB783,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Shu Ming
Mr. Chan Man Wai
Mr. Ku Hok Chiu
Ms. Weng Peihe

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Chi Keung
Mr. Kwong Ping Man
Mr. Cheung Kin Ting Alfred

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ku Hok Chiu, Ms. Weng Peihe and Mr. Kwong Chi
Keung will retire as directors by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as directors at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from Mr. Kwong Chi
Keung, Mr. Kwong Ping Man and Mr. Cheung Kin Ting Alfred. As at
the date of this report, the Company still considers these independent
non-executive directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Yip Shu Ming, Mr. Chan Man Wai, Mr. Ku Hok Chiu
and Ms. Weng Peihe, all being executive directors, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years with effect from 25 March 2011, which shall be renewed and
extended automatically for successive terms of one year upon expiry
of the then current term until terminated by either party by giving not
less than three months’ written notice expiring at the end of the initial
term of their appointment or any time thereafter to the other.

Each of Mr. Kwong Chi Keung, Mr. Kwong Ping Man and Mr. Cheung
Kin Ting Alfred, all being independent non-executive directors, has
been appointed for an initial term of two years commencing from 25
March 2011, which shall be renewed and extended automatically
for successive terms of one year upon expiry of the then current
term until terminated by either party giving not less than one
month’s written notice expiring at the end of the initial term of their
appointment or any time thereafter to the other. The appointments
are subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association with regard
to vacation of office of directors, removal and retirement by rotation of
directors.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of
our subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are disclosed in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to
26 of this annual report.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings disclosed below, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS EERTETHAERBRORMEERORE
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING fEEpERRAE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of RZE——F+-A=+—H AT EEN
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares TETHABRART R EFAMEEER(TE
and underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of B EHEREAEIEN([HFERBAEMKRE])EXVED)
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the  ZB&1H - HBEARRHD REEFES - A ENAK
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), as recorded in the register A FIERIEE S KB EIRHIE35281F B 2 B8
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as N2 #EzE R AR - KIBBIEESFRIZBHE R
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant A &) BT ragtEzs AR - SHIEEHINT

to the Model Code as follows:

Number of ordinary shares ™"

EEREE

Percentage of

the issued share

Held by capital of

controlled the Company

Beneficial corporation NN

Name of Director Owners =4 ERTRA
EEnE BERmBEAA ZERE BOL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of

the Company
RNAFIEREEO.1ET
2 EmR
Mr. Yip Shu Ming - 102,920,000 (L) 102,920,000 (L) 24.73%
ERIREE (Note2) (Riz2)
Mr. Chan Man Wai 2,016,000 147,000,000 (L) 149,016,000 (L) 35.81%
WX&" 5’6 E (Note 3) (H1it3)
Mr. Ku Hok Chiu - 44,200,000 () 44,200,000 (L) 10.62%
3%@%5‘5 (Note 4) (HfaF4)
Ms. Weng Peihe 1,150,000 (L) - 1,150,000 (L) 0.27%
SR+
Notes: Hat -
(1) The letter “L” denotes the directors’ long position in the shares of the (1)  FRILIFRREZHNAA RSB BEEEZERGH
Company or the relevant associated corporation. A -
(2)  These shares were held by Current Success Investments Limited,  (2) 1t % B {5 B3 Current Success Investments Limited
which is wholly owned by Mr. Yip Shu Ming. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. (HEBREIE2EREB)BE - BREEHR
Yip is taken to be interested in the shares held by Current Success BB GBI - 5 % & AR B R Current Success
Investments Limited. Investments Limited FT5 8 F IR0 A #E B 125 o
(3)  These shares were held by Best Active Investments Limited, which is ~ (3) L% & {5 B3 Best Active Investments Limited ( B3 FR
wholly owned by Mr. Chan Man Wai. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan XEEEZEHEB)FEE - REBEZHFREERA -
is taken to be interested in the shares held by Best Active Investments PR %5 A 45 15 B A Best Active Investments Limited Pt
Limited. ARG P EEER -
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(4)  These shares were held by Bright Mind Investments Limited, which is
wholly owned by Mr. Ku Hok Chiu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ku is taken
to be interested in the shares held by Bright Mind Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had registered an interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the
persons (other than a director or chief executive of the Company) in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Capacity/nature of
interest

59, st

Name of Shareholders

BRERE A

Current Success Investments Limited “oe2(#22)
EREAEA

Ms. Wong Sau Mui "2

BRI ACiBtEs

Best Active Investments Limited ™ot 9(43)

BEmBEBA

Ms. Au Yim Bing "9

[ sk 27 = FoiBtEsS
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Beneficial owner

Interest of spouse

Beneficial owner

Interest of spouse

(4) S fBright Mind Investments Limited (&
BRAELERB)NE BIEZHRAERK
& P A 8 B Bright Mind Investments Limited it
FEORN RS ER -

Br EXXATEEEN  RZE—Z—F+=A
=t+—H BERARRETEBTHRAEBBEE
SR ARQ R SR EAMAR AENRG - HER
M ERET @ EEAREEFRBEKRDE
352{FBME AN R M R T R s B 2 1
= RRE - RABBIZEST A S AR F) K
RETHIRE R MR R o

EFRRRNRAD KA R AR

RZZE——F+-A=1+—H RAQAREHD
SAEE D R IRIBE B 5 KR R G B 336 1A A
RAIEATHEEZEMAEB R ERRIAR 2
EH (AR EEREBTHRAERINGT ¢

Number and
class of
securities "
BEHER

o\ 35 (HfaE1)
o

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
IRAEREA
AL
102,920,000 24.73%
shares (L)
102,920,000
ML)
102,920,000 24.73%
shares (L)
102,920,000
Ptn (L)

147,000,000
shares (L)
147,000,000
P (L)

35.32%

149,016,000 35.81%
shares (L)
149,016,000

Bt (L)



Number and Approximate
class of percentage of

Capacity/nature of securities M7 shareholding
Name of Shareholders interest EHEEAER PRAEREL
RRM A 55, Rt BOL
Bright Mind Investments Limited et 474 Beneficial owner 44,200,000 10.62%
EnHAA shares (L)
44,200,000
AR (L)
Ms. Ku Wai Man ™ ¥ Interest of spouse 44,200,000 10.62%
HERL " [iTRR o shares (L)
44,200,000
AR5 (L)
Orchid Asia IV, L.P, Mete 925/ Beneficial owner 33,082,000 7.95%
BEnB A shares (L)
33,082,000
& (L)
OAIV Holdings, L.P. Mete 97ize) Interest of a controlled 33,082,000 7.95%
corporation shares (L)
RiEHEE S 33,082,000
AR (L)
Orchid Asia IV Group Management, Limited "7 |nterest of a controlled 33,082,000 7.95%
corporation shares (L)
Rt EE R 33,082,000
AR (L)
Orchid Asia IV Group Limited Mot 9##8) Interest of a controlled 33,082,000 7.95%
corporation shares (L)
R EE S 33,082,000
AR (L)
Orchid Asia IV Investment, Limited et 9#3¢) Interest of a controlled 33,082,000 7.95%
corporation shares (L)
RiEHEE R 33,082,000
AR5 (L)
YM Investment Limited (ote 9(#i5) Interest of a controlled 33,646,000 8.08%
corporation shares (L)
RiEHEE 33,646,000
& (L)
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Number and Approximate

class of percentage of

Capacity/nature of securities " shareholding

Name of Shareholders interest EHEAER IRERL

REHH B9 kg 23y Bkt

Ms. Lam Lai Ming "*® Founder of a discretionary 33,646,000 8.08%
HREERR 2 0 trust shares (L)
ZREEFTRIA 33,646,000
& (L)

Mr. Li Gabriel M9 Founder of a discretionary 33,646,000 8.08%
Zs B o e (Wito) trust shares (L)
ZREEFEEIEA 33,646,000
AR (L)

ManageCorp Limited Mo 96/ Trustee 33,646,000 8.08%
ZEEA shares (L)
33,646,000
& (L)

The letter “L.” denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares of
the Company.

These shares were beneficially owned by Current Success Investments
Limited, which was wholly owned by Mr. Yip Shu Ming. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Yip is taken to be interested in the shares held by Current
Success Investments Limited. Ms. Wong Sau Mui is the spouse of Mr.
Yip. Under the SFO, Ms. Wong is taken to be interested in the shares in
which Mr. Yip is interested.

These shares were beneficially owned by Best Active Investments
Limited, which was wholly owned by Mr. Chan Man Wai. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. Chan is taken to be interested in the shares held by Best
Active Investments Limited. Ms. Au Yim Bing is the spouse of Mr. Chan.
Under the SFO, Ms. Au is taken to be interested in the shares in which
Mr. Chan is interested.

These shares were beneficially owned by Bright Mind Investments
Limited, which was wholly owned by Mr. Ku Hok Chiu. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Ku is taken to be interested in the shares held by Bright Mind
Investments Limited. Ms. Ku Wai Man is the spouse of Mr. Ku. Under
the SFO, Ms. Ku is taken to be interested in the shares in which Mr. Ku is
interested.
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So far as the directors are aware of, these shares were beneficially
owned as to 33,082,000 shares by Orchid Asia IV, L.P. and as to
564,000 shares by Orchid Asia IV Co-investment, Limited. Orchid Asia
IV, L.P. was wholly controlled by OAIV Holdings, L.P., which was in turn
wholly controlled by Orchid Asia IV Group Management, Limited, which
was in turn wholly controlled by Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited, which
was in turn wholly controlled by Orchid Asia IV Investment, Limited,
which was approximately 92.61% controlled by YM Investment Limited.
Orchid Asia IV Co-investment, Limited was wholly controlled by YM
Investment Limited. Under the SFO, OAIV Holdings, L.P., Orchid Asia
IV Group Management, Limited, Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited, Orchid
Asia IV Investment, Limited and YM Investment Limited were taken to
be interested in the shares beneficially owned by Orchid Asia IV, L.P.,
and YM Investment Limited was taken to be interested in the shares
beneficially owned by Orchid Asia IV Co-investment, Limited. Ms. Lam
Lai Ming and Mr. Li Gabriel were also interested in YM Investment
Limited through ManageCorp Limited as Trustee and were taken to be
interested in the shares in which YM Investment Limited was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, no person (other

than a director or chief executive of the Company) had registered

an interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE AWARD PLAN

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a pre-initial public offering share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) adopted by the Company
on 25 March 2011, the Company had granted 4,000,000
options to eligible senior management and employees of the
Group to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company subject
to the terms and conditions stipulated under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2012, there were 2,401,000 outstanding
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme which
had not been exercised yet. Share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are exercisable at HK$0.825
per share and each of the said share options granted to him/
her may exercise the share options (a) up to 30% thereof during
the period from 20 April 2012 to 19 April 2013; (b) subject to (a),
up to 60% thereof during the period from 20 April 2012 to 19
April 2014; and (c) subject to (a) and (b), all outstanding options
during the period from 20 April 2012 to 19 April 2015.

BEFE - %ZRR% 5 BIEOrchid Asia IV, L.P. &
Orchid Asia IV Co-investment, Limited & 2 # &
33,082,0000% }564,0008% ° Orchid Asia IV, L.P.F
OAIV Holdings, L.P. B %1 %] + M OAIV Holdings,
L.P.AOrchid Asia IV Group Management, Limited
B H - i Orchid Asia IV Group Management,
Limited Il g5 Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited B8 58 ¢
#l ° Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited & Orchid Asia
IV Investment, Limited 2 38 42 % - T Orchid Asia
IV Investment, Limited BIJ F8 YM Investment Limited
5 92.61% 2% » Orchid Asia IV Co-investment,
Limited B1YM Investment Limited 8812 6l - 1R35:5
% M EAE &) © OAIV Holdings, L.P. » Orchid Asia IV
Group Management, Limited ~ Orchid Asia IV Group,
Limited + Orchid Asia IV Investment, Limited X YM
Investment Limited# #2 &7 Orchid Asia IV, L.P. &
mHEBRRMDAPESEER - M YM Investment
Limited # 18 & 7 Orchid Asia IV Co-investment,
Limted Em AN RO P HEERER - MEBHLK
+ & 2 E B S A VR YM Investment Limited 3@ 1B
ManageCorp LimitedfE A st A#EB @ - W
18 ARYM Investment Limited % & #E 25 9 A& (7 /0 1
s -

BEXFIBREEN R_E——F+=A
=1+—H #BECHAL(KAFTESHEBEIT

BAERRY

MFEACERARRIREBEES M

{GRPIE336IRA T FEMNE LMD IAR °

BRI R0 REEE

(a)
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2,401,00017 fERR BB B X AR B ER
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B AFMR0.825/ T  MER LillBERER
BRI R@Q-E——FNA=tTHE=
T——FMWA+NBHE  1TFERZ30%
HEEIRE  OBREBE@QEMNER KNZ2F
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The following table disclosed movement in the Company’s TREBEARLQTERENERNZ BEEN
share option during the year:

Lapsed
upon
termination Asat
As at of 31 December
1 January employment 2012
2012 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled  during the s
Exercise s during during during year —E-ZF
Vesting period Exercisable period pice —E-Cf the year the year the year ERgE +25
GRS iy 8 -A-B  ERRE  ERTE EARE BRRAN =16
Tranche 1 25/03/2011-19/04/2012  20/04/2012-20/04/2015 HK$0.825 1,200,000 - 1,116,000 - 84,000 -
i 08557
Tranche 2 25/03/2011-19/04/2013  20/04/2013-20/04/2015 HK$0.825 1,200,000 - - - 171,000 1,029,000
i 0855
Tranche 3 25/03/2011-19/04/2014  20/04/2014-20/04/2015 HK$0.825 1,600,000 - - - 228,000 1,372,000
B 0855
4,000,000 - 1,116,000 - 483,000 2,401,000
The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately SZ AT B HARTAR (D AV Nt 15
before the date on which the share options were exercised was WmBAR167TEIL(ZE——F « EERE
HK$1.67 (2011: No share options were exercised). A7) o
(b) Share Option Scheme (b) HERRAEETE
By a written resolutions passed by all shareholders of the BEARAIZEBRERN=_ZT——F=A
Company on 25 March 2011, the Company had adopted a ZTHHBBMNEARR - AR ERMA
share option scheme (the “Share Options Scheme”). Up to —IE AT ([ R EST R ) - HER
and as at 31 December 2012, no options have been granted R-ZZE——F+=—A=+—H  ARQRFH
or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. ERBEEREAEBELIAZELER
Summary of some of the principal terms of the Share Option T o BIRIERTEINH D T EGTBMENT ¢
Scheme are as follows:
()  Purposes [/=: 1
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable BRI S EEA R AR L R
the Company to grant options to selected participants TREFERSEE  ERHETEHAR
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the AIFTEE R A SR S B - EF R
Company. The Directors consider the Share Option 7 ABBIRIERT S EIZ 2 A
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, BHER QR EH AR BELE
will enable the Company to reward the employees, RMES  ZESRAMKERNSER
the directors and other selected participants for their H o

contributions to the Company.
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(i)

Qualifying participants

The Directors may, at its absolute discretion, invite any
person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants, to take up options to subscribe for shares:

(@a) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director) of the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in
which any member of the Company holds an equity
interest;

(bb) any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(cc) any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Company or any Invested Entity;

(dd) any customer of any member of the Company or
any Invested Entity;

(ee) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Company or any Invested Entity;

(ff)  any shareholder of any member of the Company or
any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Company or any
Invested Entity;

(9g) any advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Company or any Invested Entity;

(hh) any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of the
Company;

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the
offer for the grant of option may be made to any company
wholly owned by one or more persons belonging to any
of the above classes of participants.

(i)

ZHA L EIE

EFTRL@ETEE - AERAT
BII18 514 8235 WY A+ 32 R BB
R

(a) ARE - EEMMERFRA
NEMEIK B R RSB R AR
anEAEE((ZREER )
MR E (T im B 2 Bk
B BRATESHESIERE
IFMITES))

(bb) ARE - EEMFMEAFRE
MZREERNEAERNTE
Z(BREBUIFNTESR)

(cc) RNABMEMEKE RRISEAX
KREBBNEDMIRGHHIE
o

(dd) AABEMRAE AR RERZ
REBRNEP

(ee) AR BMEMIAL B QAR
X EERREEHESEMR
R ENEMALTHELS

(f) ARBEMRKERRRERZ
BREBENTARREAAAF
TAXE ARSI EE
B RTARERITIEAES
MEAFEA

(99) ADEMEMRKE R B SHEMR
REBRBTMNEBHBERER
FE AT R (BN EM S
) EREM

(hh) AEEBEREFEEE - XHHEN
Htp RG L AR A B R
KMIBRA BRI AT REERIRIE
A EMbEENER 2 0E

AR EImE - Al RBNME
il BRI EENALTHZRAL
EEBREANEAARERRLBR
1 -
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(i)

Maximum number of shares

(aa)

(bb)

(co)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in
issue from time to time.

The total number of the shares which may be
allotted and issued upon the exercise of all options
(excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company) to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue on the Listing Date, being
40,000,000 shares (“General Scheme Limit”).

Subject to (aa) above but without prejudice to (dd)
below, the Company may seek approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting
to refresh the General Scheme Limit provided that
the total number of shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as of the
date of approval of the limit and, for the purpose
of calculating the limit, options (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Company)
previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company will not be counted. The circular sent
by the Company to its shareholders shall contain,
among other information, the information required
under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and
the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules.

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR E R A |

(i)

KECLIR

(aa)

(bb)

(cc)
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(iv)

(dd) Subject to (aa) above and without prejudice to
(cc) above, the Company may seek separate
shareholders’ of the Company approval in general
meeting to grant options beyond the General
Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the extended limit
referred to in (cc) above to participants specifically
identified by the Company before such approval
is sought. In such event, the Company must send
a circular to its shareholders containing a generic
description of the specified participants, the number
and terms of options to be granted, the purpose of
granting options to the specified participants with
an explanation as to how the terms of the options
serve such purpose and such other information
required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules
and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of
the Listing Rules.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company for the time being (“Individual Limit”).
Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual
Limit in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of such further grant must be separately approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting
of the Company with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting. The number and terms (including
the exercise price) of options to be granted must be fixed
before the approval of the shareholders of the Company
and the date of the Board meeting for proposing such
further grant should be taken as the date of grant for the
purpose of calculating the exercise price under note (1) to
Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.

()

(dd) ¥ EX(aa)FTBR RETFE X
COmBERT » ANARIERIRE
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MBS A B EREAR R
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MatEl PR sk (i@ A ) 3 (co)
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BE2EERTBREZBDN
K R R B AR R 2 I SRl E B
BB R EMHRAIZE17.022)
OEREZ EMER & ETH
BIZE17.024) 6B E2 R EE
BH o

75 LML IR R FIR

RAER121E A HBIE E T E R E B
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(v)

(vi)

(vi)

(viif)

Time of acceptance and exercise of options

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
to be determined and notified by the directors to each
grantee, which period may commence from the date of
the offer for the grant of options is made, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. Unless otherwise determined by the directors and
stated in the offer for the grant of options to a grantee,
there is no minimum period required under the Share
Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can
be exercised.

Subscription price for the shares and consideration for
the option

The subscription price for the shares under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or
more board lots of the shares on the date of the offer for
the grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer for the grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on the date on which the Share
Option Scheme is adopted.

Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme

As at 22 March 2013, the total number of shares which
may be issued pursuant to the exercise of options which
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme was
40,000,000 shares, representing about 9.61% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.
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v)

(i)

(vii)

(Vi)
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(c)

Share Award Plan

The Company adopted a share award plan (the “Share Award
Plan”) on 25 March 2011 pursuant to which the Board may,
subject to and in accordance with the rules of the Share
Award Plan, make an award of shares to certain classes of
eligible participants as specified in the Share Award Plan, as
determined by the Board from time to time on the basis of the
Board’s opinion as to the proposed awardee’s contribution
and/or future contribution to the development and growth of the
Group. The shares and other trust fund for the implementation
of the Share Award Plan shall be administered by a trustee or
trustees (the “Share Award Plan Trustee”) to be appointed by
the Company.

Under the Share Award Plan, the Board shall determine
the eligibility of the eligible participants and the number of
shares to be awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) and notify
the Share Award Plan Trustee of the making of awards. The
Share Award Plan Trustee shall then set aside the appropriate
number of Awarded Shares pending the transfer and vesting
to the relevant participants out of a pool of shares which shall
comprise of, among others, shares either (1) transferred to
it from any person (other than the Group) by way of gift; (2)
purchased by the Share Award Plan Trustee out of the funds
received by the Share Award Plan Trustee by way of gift or
for nominal consideration; (3) subscribed for or purchased by
the Share Award Plan Trustee out of the funds allocated by
the Board out of the Group’s resources, subject to the terms
and conditions of the rules of the Share Award Plan. The
Share Award Plan Trustee may purchase shares on the Stock
Exchange at the prevailing market price or off market. In respect
of off-market transactions, purchases shall not be made with
any connected person, nor shall the purchase price be higher
than the lower of (1) the closing market price on the date of
such purchase, and (2) the average closing market price for the
five preceding trading days on which shares of the Company
were traded on the Stock Exchange. In any given financial
year of the Company, the maximum numbers of shares to be
purchased by the Share Award Plan Trustee shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue of the Company
at the beginning of such financial year. The Share Award Plan
Trustee may also subscribe for new shares at par or at such
other subscription price as instructed by the Board out of the
Group’s contribution if the Board considers it appropriate to do
so. The Company shall comply with the relevant Listing Rules
when granting the Awarded Shares.

(c)
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The legal and beneficial ownership of the relevant Awarded
Shares shall vest in the relevant selected participant within 10
business days after the latest of (1) the date specified on the
notice of the award given by the Board to the Share Award
Plan Trustee; and (2) where applicable, the date on which the
condition(s) or performance target(s) (if any) to be attained by
such selected participant as specified in the related notice of
award have been attained and notified to the Share Award Plan
Trustee by the Board in writing.

Unless early termination by the Board, the Share Award Plan
shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing
from the adoption date. Up to and as at 31 December 2012, no
share had been awarded under the Share Award Plan.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 29(a) to the financial statements and in the
sections headed “History, Reorganization and Corporate Structure”
of the Prospectus and “Directors’ Report — Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this annual report, no director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had conducted the following continuing
connected transactions which were required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rules 14A.45 and 14A.46 of the Listing Rules:

(@) CCT Tenancy Agreements

Meco Group, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, is principally engaged in property investment. It
is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chan Man Wai, 35% by Mr. Yip Shu
Ming and 15% by Mr. Ku Hok Chiu. Dongguan Well Excellent,
a company established in the PRC with limited liability, is
principally engaged in property leasing. It is wholly owned by
HK Well Excellent, an investment holding company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and owned as to 50% by Mr.
Chan Man Wai, 35% by Mr. Yip Shu Ming and 15% by Mr. Ku
Hok Chiu. As Mr. Chan Man Wai, Mr. Yip Shu Ming and Mr.
Ku Hok Chiu are the controlling shareholders of the Company
and executive Directors, each of Meco Group and Dongguan
Well Excellent is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to the CCT Tenancy Agreements entered into BEAEE(EAEKAA)BESEEK

between the Group as lessee and Meco Group or (as the case (FRFBRmME ) Rl E(EB%ET )N
may be) Dongguan Well Excellent as landlord, the Group agreed HCCTH &S ANEBRSHETE TN XA
to lease the premises set out below for an initial term expired HYE  MFEHRN T ——F+=-A4
on 31 December 2012, with an option for the Group to, subject =+—HEm  AEEMRENSENIE
to compliance with the relevant requirements under the Listing HEEHEmEAEERH MERERE - X
Rules, renew and extend the tenancy for successive terms =F . WEET FTRABERTE - R
of three years upon expiry of the then current term. The rent FHENBES T ESRNERBETmHHE
payable under the extended term shall not be higher than the % BIERFHNEAEETESHRE SR
then prevailing market rent and any increment for the extended MIRA FHEMNHESM20% - IRIECCTH
term shall not exceed 20% of the rent payable under the then EH% AEENFEBRESERK (T
current term. Pursuant to the CCT Tenancy Agreements, the ERmME) R iEaxt NN —@EAEZm|
Group may terminate the relevant CCT Tenancy Agreement by BHKIFHEBACCTHE S - KEBEKE
serving not less than one month prior written notice to Meco NEEHEMERIERESERE  1H53)|h L0
Group or (as the case may be) Dongguan Well Excellent. The B iRESS 2N

leased premises are used for operation of restaurant, training
centre or ancillary office by the respective Group member.

Further details in relation to the premises leased from Meco ERESEENHEEMENTIETY T -
Group are set out below:

Total rent
payable under
the CCT Tenancy
Agreements
Location; and (Note 1)
Date of Use RECCTRE S
Agreement ) %R EfHRLAE Terms Term of lease
ik =k ik (Hiit1) 8 BERR
(1) 1 August 2010 () Units 2101, 2102, 2103, 2105, 1 August 2010 to Monthly rent of RMB104,000 is payable 1 August 2010 to
—ZF-%F 2106, 2107 and 2108, 31 December 2012: by the Group to Meco Group in 31 December 2012
NA—8 Block H, Expo Square, RMB3,016,000 advance each month, Such rent is (Note 2)
Dongcheng District, Dongguan “E-Ff inclusive of rental tax and exclusve of ~ —ZE—F4F
City, Guangdong Province, JAV; = EY water, electricity, telephone, television, ~ \A—HZ
the PRC —E-CF heat, gas, property management, —E-F
i) Restaurant +-A=1-8: cleaning, intemet, car parkandindoor ~ +ZA=+—H
() PEERERZTRAE ARH3,016,00070  facilties maintenance fees. (Hiit2)
tEESHE2101 - 2102 AREARNE AMES EERA
2103~ 2105+ 2106 » 2107 XftATEAR104,0007C © %
R2108% : HeaRHERETEEKE
i) ZE g% FHE TRE B

B MRE NFERE BZ
g L% FEEREARIE
hEg -
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Date of
Agreement

3% A A

12 July 2010
—2-%F

+A+-H

1 August 2010
It S 22

NA—H

U

Location; and
Use

R
ik

Units 2008, 2018, 2028, 2038,
2048, 2058, 2068, 2078, 2088,
2098, 2248, 2258, 2308, 2318,
2348, 2368, 2418, 2428, 2438,
2448, 2458, and 2468, Shenzhen
Cinema, Zhonghai Commercidl,
1 Xinyuan Road, Luohu District,
Shenzhen,

the PRC

Restaurant

mERYIE NI
B RBURYIE:2008 -
2018 + 2028 2038 » 2048 *
2058 + 2068 * 2078 ~ 2088 *
2098 + 2248 - 2258~ 2308 *
2318 + 2348 + 2358 ~ 2418
2428 ~ 2438 2448 ~ 2458
J2468%F

2B

Units 3138, 3148, 3158, 3178,
Level 3, Shenzhen Cinema,
Zhonghai Commercid,

1 Xinyuan Road, Luohu District,
Shenzhen, the PRC

Training centre and ancillary office
mERYIEHRAER 5%
BB E 3123138 -
3148 - 3158 ~ 3178%
RO REERAE

Total rent
payable under
the CCT Tenancy
Agreements

(Note 1)

RECCTRERE

ERthAcLE
)

1 December 2010 o
31 December 2012:
RMB1,577,060

Z-TF
+-A-AH
ECR-CF
TZA=t-A:
AR 577,060

1 August 2010 to
31 December 2012:
RMB870,000

—Z-TF
JAV: = E
—ECF
T-A=t-8:
AE®870,0007T

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED E'E (Bl {ZIRER DT

No rent shall be payable for the period
from 1 June 2010 to 30 November
2010. Commencing from 1 December
2010, monthly rent of RMB63,082.40
is payable by the Group to Meco
Group in advance each month.

Such rent is inclusive of rental tax

and property management fees

and exclusive of water, electricity,
telephone, television, heat, gas,
cleaning, internet, car park and indoor
faciliies maintenance fees.

25 A-BE-%-%F
T-A=tAEREERA
Be -m-T-TF+-A-H
2 rEEERAREREE
FeATs Y AR AR 63,082.40
e ZREEEEE YR
ERE BTEEKE FE.
FHE EHE BRE
MAE FZE LHE-
FEERENRIELEES -

Monthly rent of RMB30,000 is payable
by the Group to Meco Group in
advance each month. Such rent is
inclusive of rental tax and exclusive of
water, electricity, telephone, television,
heat, gas, property management,
Cleaning, internet, car park and indoor
facilities maintenance fees.

SRARGAREREERA

T AEAR30,0007T ©

BeaEReR B aHEK

g % FiHE EHRE

BRRE MRE NFEEE.

BRE - [HE FEBR

ENREEEE -

=+

Term of lease

RERK

1 June 2010 to
31 December 2012
(Note 2)

“Z-TF
~A—H
Z-F-CF
+-A=1-H
(Hi#2)

1 August 2010 to
31 December 2012
(Note 2)

“Z-TF
NA—BZ
—E-CF
+-A=1-H
(hi#2)



Total rent

payable under
the CCT Tenancy
Agreements
Location; and (Note 1)
Date of Use RECCTHE =
Agreement B R Fika Term of lease
i A 4 R ) HER
4 3 September 2010 () Unit 4001, Shenzhen Cinema, 1 August 2010 to Monthly rent of RMB71,000 is payable 1 August 2010 to
“E-TF Zhonghai Commercial, 31 December 2012; by the Group to Meco Group in 31 December 2012
NA=H 1 Xinyuan Road, Luohu District, RMB2,059,000 advance each month. Such rent is (Note 2)
Shenzhen, the PRC “E-TfF inclusive of rental tax and exclusive of ~ —E—F4F
i) Restaurant NA—A% water, electriclty, telephone, television,  \A—RZE
() EIRYIE R HE R 5% —TCf hea, gas, property management, —TCf%
REE 4001 +ZA=t—8: cleaning, intemnet, car parkandindoor ~~ TZA=1—8
i) ZE AE#2,059,00070  faclities maintenance fees. (Hi#2)
REEENB AREREERA
ST ABARET,0007 ©
BeaEReR  BTaHEK
B 2E BHE EHE.
RAE MRE NFEEE.
BRE - LB FEBR
EARGHEE -
(o) 3 September 2010 () Unit 1 on Level 6, Shenzhen 1 August 201010 Monthly rent of RMB104,000 is payable 1 August 2010 to
%% Cinema, Zhonghai Commercidl, 31 December 2012: by the Group to Meco Group in 31 December 2012
NA=ZH 1 Xinyuan Road, Luohu District, RMB3,016,000 advance each month. Such rentis (Note 2)
Shenzhen, “E-FF inclusive of rental tax and exclusve of ~ —ZE—F4F
the PRC NA—RZ water, electricity, telephone, television, ~ \A—HZ
i) Restaurant —E-CF heat, gas, property management, —ET-CF
() PERNERRHNER IS T-A=f+-H: cleaning, interet, car parkand indoor ~~ +=A=+—F
SRR RY B6E1 = ARE3016,000T  faciities maintenance fegs. (ft2)

i) 2

B

SEEANEARNEREBERA
St AARE104,0007C 7
ReREReH  BFEEK
£ .82 3B ERE.
RRE MAE MEEEE.
E2E . LPE BEEL
ERRIEHEE o
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Further details in relation to the premises leased from Dongguan R =HENTEEYENESEY O T :
Well Excellent are set out below:

Total rent
payable under
the CCT Tenancy
Agreements
Location; and (Note 1)
Date of Use BECCTRERZ
Agreement ) #E R EftHSaE Term of lease
ik =R ik ) BEHR
©) 1 August 2010 () Units 3106, 3107, 3108, 4106, 1 August 20100 Monthly rent of RMB86,000 is payable 1 August 20100
-5 4107 and 4108, Block H, Expo 31 December 2012; by the Group to Dongguan Well 31 December 2012
NA—8 Square, Dongcheng District, RMB2,494,000 Excellent each month. Such rent is (Note 2)
Donggu an City, Guangdong “E-5F inclusive of rental tax and exclusive of ~ —F—FF
Province, the PRC NR—RZE water, electricity, telephone, television, ~ \A—HZ
i) Restaurant —F-F heat, gas, property management, g%
() HEERERETRNE +-A=+-8: cleaning, internet, car park and +-A=t-H
tHEEBHIES106 3107 AEH2,494,0007T indoor facllities maintenance fees. (fri2)
3108+ 4106 ~ 4107 R4108 AEEARE ANRERERAN
(. R ARS6,0007 - ZHL0HE

Heh B1EEKE B8
B NXEER FEE LA
B FEERENREHES -

Notes: Kt -
(1) The rent was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between (1) ZHESESHATFERT2RZESMNEA
the parties and determined by reference to the prevailing market TMEHSET -

rent of the premises.

(2)  The lease agreements have an initial term expired on 31 (2 MHEBRVIPHR-_T——-—F+=—A=+—8
December 2012, with an option for the Group to, subject to JEW - ST ETRRIERER TR T
compliance with the relevant requirements under the Listing AEBERTERNAABREREESE
Rules, renew and extend the tenancy for successive terms of B RERBEH=F -

three years upon expiry of the then current term.

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED E'E (Bl {ZIRER DT



(b)

Master service agreement for the purchase,
manufacture, installation and maintenance of
kitchen equipment

Chiu Kwun, a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability in April 1990, is principally engaged in the manufacture,
sale, installation and maintenance of kitchen equipment and
provision of consultancy services related to kitchen equipment
and kitchen layout. It is indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Ku Hok
Chiu. As Mr. Ku Hok Chiu is a controlling shareholder of the
Company and executive director, Chiu Kwun is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

On 25 March 2011, the Group entered into a master
service agreement with Chiu Kwun (“Chiu Kwun Service
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to
purchase new kitchen equipment from and engage Chiu Kwun
for the manufacture, installation and maintenance of kitchen
equipment on such terms and conditions and at such prices
to be determined from time to time by the parties on case by
case basis after arm’s length negotiations. For each transaction
under the Chiu Kwun Service Agreement, the parties shall
enter into separate contract or order, provided that the terms
and conditions of each contract or order shall be (a) on normal
commercial terms; and (b) on terms which we consider to
be no less favorable to the Group than terms offered by
independent third parties suppliers to the Group for such
products or services of comparable quality. The Chiu Kwun
Service Agreement was entered into for a term expiring on 31
December 2013 unless terminated earlier by three months’
written notice by either party.

As the design for Pepper Lunch restaurants requires the prior
approval of SFBI (Asia-Pacific) Pte. Ltd., as franchisor, the
Group has not engaged and do not intend to engage Chiu
Kwun for provision of the above goods and services in respect
of Pepper Lunch restaurants. The directors estimate that the
annual transaction amount payable by the Group to Chiu
Kwun under the Chiu Kwun Service Agreement will not exceed
RMB6.2 million, RMB7.5 million and RMB9.9 million for the
years ending 31 December 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed in note 29(a)
to the financial statements.

(b)

BE RE ZERREFERBHA
th

BES KN —NNAZTEN A+ B
R BREMERR] - TRRERE - 5
& R RREFERELIEHERRE R
wREEMRABOERRY - xR R]H
TEBAERERER AN EEBRER
ARREBRBRRFRHITES - SRE LD
MR BERRARINEEAL -

RZE——F=ZA=+HH AEEHHEB
RIS RS s ([ BEF AR ISR ) -
Bt NEERER R HERIRERE
T ARIRET AT M B E AV IR S Ak
AR ERABHFEENHERE  LRE
BERE - RRMREERFRE - sLBA
R HEER TSRS 7T RETHE
VEBANEFE  HEERENLFTEN
SRR R @B —RBEEER + Rb)
TERAAEEHEEE S 8 Em IR
M8 =0 BRI IR RO IR - B EFAR
BENERE R T —=F+_H
=t+—8 AhEAR-TSRAI=EA#EN
EERAM T AR -

R P HH BT B /Y &% 5T 78 % SFBI (Asia-
Pacific) Pte. Ltd. ({E BT A) EEHE -
WASEERBREEZEBHHE LT
mERE THIRERE - EFEET  BECZ
E——F ZE-—_FN_T-=F+_
A=+—HIFE ' A&BEIREEHRG
BEENBENTFEXSRIED TS
BARKG2HEEL - AREBT7TSEELK
ARBIIHETT -

AR B DA IS ERA I T 29() P I BB O 5
BRAERZHREBELTARRNEIAATETRH
BERUE ©
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The independent non-executive directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
undertaken by the Group were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (i) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and (i) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole, as required in Rule 14A.37 of the Listing
Rules.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their
unqualified letter containing their conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed in (a) and (b) above by
the Group in accordance with the Listing Rules and confirming the
matters as stated in Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

PENSION SCHEME

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of trustees. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the rules.

The Group contributed RMB17.8 million to the above mentioned
schemes for the year ended 31 December 2012.

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR E R A |

BUFPTERDIRR ETRANE14AI7TER
EEMALFERAEAEBEPMETZHERER
SN AEE 2 BERIEEEBET (P32
RREGZFEIGR » IR TBERAEERETIEILSE
=HRBUE=FRETAEE 2 FFET
K(iRIBEE ZERX 5 2 BRMEGR - &Y
ARERRERANGEM S IBAFAEZIGEK
HETT ©

ARAREHEBES ST ASEMNEBER
¥ TEERIZE3000%% T 2 IERZ N EM BT
BERZEZFTIEIRTE  WRREBHBET40
SRR E S LR BIFT M E R E R SR E
B BEEARRRZZEAIL K EFHAIE
BHBREEASEZIFERERS - BELTR
Al - BB LK SETEN BT E i _Eili(a) K(b)
Bz BREER S BEEw  BHER
BERZEM  ARER ETHRE14A.3815
ez EE -

EEEH

FALBIILRFEERERERELERRA R
MHEAIERBOEE 2 A

RKEFHE

AEERTEERZEESTREBNRLZE
REERKENFE 228E - FENEQR
ARMZERRBMNASBAEERE THM—
EBANLZHIE  LEERABRBEN - A&
BYZERRENAE 2 - BEERREZE
FHEIERREHR -

AEBTASESHMBRERERRIAFMER
merrEl (MR E])  BESHECEE
FHRES  BAKEZEENR > WHAXFE
AREE - RIEBEBEDE  BEEMEREAS
B R AR Z L R ALt 8K

REE-Z-——F+-_A=+—BILFE &
SER DR BIERARKI78HET -



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
were less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year and
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the
Directors are reviewed by the remuneration committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme, Share Option Scheme and Share Award Plan
as an incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of each of
the schemes are set out in pages 51 to 58 in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

FREFRHAER

AEBRAREFPFARGHEAREAEEH
SR N30% + MALKE R AHEERFRE
HERB ARG AR ERBABEDNI0% -

BEYMEOALQF LHES

RAFEE  ARrhEEAHBARMERESR
FBOARDR LHES °

B = B3R

AEBREZHMEBRBTMNEESRERSE
ZERIE - EBEEMBRFRENELER - EZ 2B
AT HEESKERARARNRIZEEEE
BARE RO LR TIGEBREELRE - AR
AR BE R A AFE SR BARERZ - BivE
FrEI MR REET S ERMEEREERKE
BIRMHERE - FIEFEIFBHNEAFRESZE
$58H o

BEBERE

ARBlZ e AERAFAESEHE A0 L EAFRH
BEBERZIATE  WEARBMBARBEL
AR B SR E E D ©

RETHRRER
ARAHAAEEEFNERRBARRFAERR
AlEFMARERE I HBRR MR
RHARBRE
REARBIMESNARENRBEESAA -

RAFHBEH  NARDHITRABENRD
25%HRNRALEE °

Annual Report 2012 =& — —F % @



Directors’ Report EE €W

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

On 25 March 2011, Mr. Chan Man Wai, Mr. Yip Shu Ming, Mr.
Ku Hok Chiu, Best Active Investments Limited, Current Success
Investments Limited and Bright Mind Investments Limited (collectively,
the “Controlling Shareholders”), have given an irrevocable non-
compete undertaking (the “Non-compete Undertaking”) in
favour of the Group pursuant to which each of them irrevocably,
unconditionally, jointly and severally undertaken, among other
matters, not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, invest in or be engaged
in any business which would or may compete with the business of the
Group. Details of the Non-compete Undertaking have been set out in
the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders”
of the Prospectus.

The Non-compete Undertaking has become effective from the Listing
Date.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking from the Listing Date to the date of this
report.

The independent non-executive directors had reviewed the
compliance with and enforcement of the terms of the Non-compete
Undertaking by the Controlling Shareholders from the Listing Date to
the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting policies,
accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group and the
consolidated financial statements and results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR E R A |
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AUDITORS EEm

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditors of the Company {Z%) e B=H S €@ stITTR —_ZE——F N A
with effect from 14 September 2012. Ernst & Young were appointed P B BHT A4 A BIZEEN © K 2RI E &
by the Board as the auditors of the Company with effect from 14 FrEEZSZE AN A BKERD - LUBEEREE
September 2012 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of £ e B[R T @ =TEN/ TR ME 4 2 FRfF 2= fr o
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as ok @ 5HEI B ST SR - LA RREEKREA
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual £ A& FIE2RHE BT LKA

General Meeting. BT ABARR B ERED
On behalf of the Board REEZS

Yip Shu Ming =

Chariman E 58

Hong Kong B

22 March 2013 —ET-=F=H=+=H
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG
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To the shareholders of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tang
Palace (China) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 146, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR E R A |

Ernst & Young RGBT
22/F CITIC Tower EBRRFEBIN
1 Tim Mei Avenue PERE221E

Central, Hong Kong

Eah: +852 2846 9888
f5E- +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com
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To the shareholders of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2013
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COHSOHdated |nCOme S-ta-temen-t Year ended 31 December 2012

SEWERR azce——r1-p=t—AIEs

Revenue g 5 824,712 746,203
Other income and gain, net H b Y A N W e HRE 5 18,386 14,598
Cost of inventories consumed BREFEKAK (338,536) (306,332)
Staff costs B TR (206,917) (173,126)
Depreciation of items of property, e =N

plant and equipment REEBINE (39,800) (31,405)
Utilities and consumables NHEER M MOERE D (52,362) (46,137)
Rental and related expenses He MEERY (72,773) (60,937)
Listing and related expenses EHkEERX - (13,697)
Other expenses HAS (57,453) (53,772)
Finance costs BB A 7 - (688)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE A F 6 75,257 74,707
Income tax expense FrS iR 10 (20,425) (23,981)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEEF 54,832 50,726
Attributable to owners of the Company RRRHEE AFE(S 11 54,832 50,726
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AR EBRER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BEAELZ

THE COMPANY BRER 13
Basic (RMB) AERARE) 0.132 0.133
Diluted (RMB) HEARK) 0.131 0.133

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note ~ FREZZAE Z BRI ISHREN 12 HE -
12 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of ComprenenSIve INCOME ver ssss sscent

EETEWNEREK gz —st—A=t+—ALEE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEEF 54,832 50,726
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hih 2 HEEE
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINEB 2

foreign operations MEH Z5E (496) -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREZEWSLEEE

FOR THE YEAR 54,336 50,726
Attributable to owners of the Company RARER AL 11 54,336 50,726
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Consolidated Statement of Financial PosItion = secemee oz
AR ree——s+-p=+—n

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE NGRS 14 148,699 98,860
Intangible assets | AE 15 12,169 7,528
Rental deposits HEZe 18 16,802 13,367
Deferred tax assets FEIERIEE = 22 6,097 4,600
Total non-current assets IEMBIEEBRE 183,767 124,355
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 17 24,048 20,151
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H A K EIE 18 26,941 17,331
Cash and cash equivalents Be&kHREeHE 20 265,405 293,567
Total current assets e B ELAEE 316,394 331,049
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and other payables 25 &Eﬁﬂf ﬁ E Q] 21 128,344 107,690
Amounts due to related companies FERRE N R FRIE 19 1,394 100
Tax payable FERTFRIR 4,254 7,405
Total current liabilities TEBEAE 133,992 115,195
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 182,402 215,854
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HMEERABERE

LIABILITIES 366,169 340,209
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 22 1,115 950
Net assets BEFE 365,054 339,259
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners ARAREE AELEER

of the Company
Issued capital B AT AR 23 34,944 34,853
Reserves EA 24(a) 330,110 304,406
Total equity Bk 365,054 339,259

Yip Shu Ming Chan Man Wai
& BRI &
Director Director
EBE EE
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Conso dated Statement of Changes I EQUITY e exsss sssree 2o

FH—A=t—HILLFE

Z —H— N7 ZE
4 AN S HE 7 @]2% BE—T——

At 1 January 2011 R-F—%-f—H 28(3) 338 - 17,411 - 74,156 - 46,339 138,244
Proft for the year and total ERgilk

comprehensive income for FENGES

the year - - - - - - 50,726 50,726
Issue of shares pursuant RESEBAZTRG

to the Group Reorganisation 23(8) (170) - - - 170 - - -
lssue of shares by capitalisation ~ EBERNEER

of share premium acoount EME IR 230) 25,027 (25,027) - - - - - -
lssug of shares atapremum ~ ERENAHEERE

through inital public offering ﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬂﬂxf’\ 23() 8398 130,165 - - - - - 138563
lssue of shares at apremum A BTFRERRIER

through exercise of the HEERN

over-allotment option 23(0) 1,260 19,526 - - - - - 20,786
Transaction costs attoutableto  Z/TRIEE L ZHA

issue of shares - (10,598) - - - - - (10,698)
Equity-settled share WRAGE

option arrangement % RIEZH % - - - 1498 - - - 1498
Transfer fom retained profits ~ (RED % - - 3475 - - = (3.475) =
At 31 December 2011 RIE——&

+-h=1-H 34,853 114,106" 20,886 1,498 74,326 - 98,5907 339,209

At 1 January 2012 A\—E-——%#-f-H 34,853 114,106 20,886 1,498 74,326 - 93,590 339,259
Proft for the year ERgi| - - - - - - 54,632 54,832
Other comprehensive loss EnAtrEEE

for the year:
Exchange difference on translation #4885 E ME £

of foreign operations EiEE - - - - - (496) - (496)
Total comprehensieincome ~ FAZEN A

for the year - - - - - (496) 54,832 54,336
Equiy-setfled shareoption~~~ MARAEEE

amangement BRERH % - - - 1,238 - - - 1,238
Exercise of share options {TieERE 2e) 9 1,604 - (944) - - - 751
Share options lapsed during the  ERK 2 EBRiE

year - - - (227) - - 27 -
Final 2011 dividend declared 20 NERBRE - (30530 - - - - - (30530
Transfer from retained profits ~ FREBEFIBE - - 789 - - - (789) -
At 31 December 2012 RE-—F

+-h=1-H 34,944 85,180* 21,675 1,565* 74,326* (496)* 147,860+ 365,054
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * WEFERF EEHES YU BEREF NG FE

RMB330,110,000 (2011: RMB304,406,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position

A E#330,110000T (= F——4F : AR
304,406,0007T) -
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COHSO“dated Statemeﬂt Of CaSh |:|OWS Year ended 31 December 2012

FEENEMER az-—2——4+-A=t+—RLaw

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES && ZE)fiiSHEHE
Profit before tax R F5t /g A 75,257 74,707
Adjustments for: KRR
Finance costs BB R A 7 - 688
Interest income A EUWA 5 (3,210) (1,092)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEME - BE &
property, plant and equipment HEEBZ
BB (W) & (409) 3
Depreciation e 6 39,800 31,405
Amortisation of intangible assets A 6 1,117 848
Equity-settled share option expense AR 245 S RS AR RE B S 25 1,238 1,498
113,793 108,057
Increase in inventories FEIE N (3,897) (7,378)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K E b e Y G IE G N (9,610) (58)
Increase in rental deposits AEREEM (3,435) (2,009)
Increase in trade and other payables g5 &ﬁﬁﬁﬂg RIFRIEE AN 20,306 22,5692
Increase in amounts due to related companies  FEfE3:E A B ZIB L AN 1,294
Cash generated from operations REFBMEHRE 118,451 121,204
Interest paid EAIHE - (688)
Income tax paid B ATSH (24,908) (27,022)
Net cash flows from operating activities KE RS REREFE 93,543 93,494
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFBFiSRERE
Interest received B F & 3,210 1,092
Purchases of items of property, BEYWE  WEKEKEEE
plant and equipment (90,643) (35,417)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE BB MREEE
property, plant and equipment FriS 308 1,413 6
Additions to intangible assets mﬁﬁﬁ/§F (5,758) (584)
Repayment from a related company REBERRZER - 465
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEEZHFARS RE F5 (91,778) (34,438)
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

BMETBMERTRE

Proceeds from issue of shares BITRRD P15 5KIR 751 169,349
Transaction cost on issue of shares BITRGD 2 R S KA - (10,558)
New bank loans HILIRITE R - 12,000
Repayment of bank loans BRIRITER - (53,019
Repayment of an amount due to e —ERE R RIER

a related company - (163)
Dividends paid ERRE (30,530) =
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activites B ESEBIFTS /(AT )RS

eI (29,779) 107,609

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND HERESLELM

CASH EQUIVALENTS (R )28 (28,014) 166,665
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E#I7H & RF &% 293,567 126,902
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [E R} 7 2/ 2 R %E (148) =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZEEREELEE

END OF YEAR 265,405 293,567
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREZEZIM

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITES 20 219,383 199,449
Non-pledged time deposits with original BUERFRIHADR=

maturity of less than three months when & A & KR T i E R

acquired 20 46,022 94,118
Cash and cash equivalent as stated in WA e mERYIRAIR

the consolidated statement of cash flows & MEEEE 265,405 293,567
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Statement of Financial Position s oeseres 2012
TGN TR —2——5+-f=+—=

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR E 16 7,007 7,097
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI FRE] 16 112,853 123,051
Total non-current assets ERENEEETE 119,950 130,148
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5N E A fE G IA 18 117 66
Cash and cash equivalents i Ve e [ 20 1,017 2,069
Total current assets B A EAAEE 1,134 2,135
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFRIE 21 1,006 373
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN ENGIE R 16 - 1,688
Total current liabilities mENBEREE 1,006 2,061
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 128 74
Net assets BEFE 120,078 130,222
EQUITY xR
Issued capital BB TR A 23 34,944 34,853
Reserves e 24(b) 85,134 95,369
Total equity EmBE 120,078 130,222
Yip Shu Ming Chan Man Wai
EH BRI {2
Director Director
EE BE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 April 2011 (the
“Listing date”). The registered office of the Company is located
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place
of business is located at Unit 3, 10th Floor, Greenfield Tower,
Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

Pursuant to corporate reorganisation (the “Group
Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure of the Group
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange, the Company has become the holding
company of the Group on 25 March 2011. Details of the Group
Reorganisation were set out in the section headed “Statutory
and General Information” in Appendix V to the Company’s
prospectus dated 7 April 2011 (the “Prospectus”).

The Group resulting from the Group Reorganisation is regarded
as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income and cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2011 included the results and cash flows of the
companies comprising the Group in that year which had been
prepared by applying the principles of merger accounting,
as if the Group structure upon the completion of the Group
Reorganisation had been in existence throughout the year
ended 31 December 2011, or since their respective dates of
incorporation or establishment where that was a shorter period.

During the year, the Group is principally engaged in restaurant
operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements i osemser 2012
Eﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁgﬁﬁf —E——F+-A=+—H

RAEHR

EFE(REDZERERAG(RAR ) B—
MRHASESTMRINBRAR - H
BhEe=—E——FmWA+TAB(LETA
H)REEEBERZMAR AR ([ B
Rl £ e RARIWEMHERLAR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands + MH F Z & E MBI R E B NEE
RIEEE 1R E SR E10E3E o

RIE R B AR B IR AR 32 P LT i &
THAREA(EEEA]) - UBEEHA
SENRE  ARRAR-_FT——F=A
“tTHHERBRARREMNIER AR - BRE
EEHENFE  ERARRMANEENAS
—E—FNALENARER(BRE
BOMERDEE K —RER | —&

REBESR  *EEHERRE —HFE
BRIt REE-_ZT——F+_-A
—t+—HLEFEMNGEEZAREERLRS
MERBEAEEETHRARMESERIR
eRE ENEBAEHETENRAE
g MR E T ——F+ = A=1—
BIEEE @ BRESENFEMA K
YHBAREHEEAE)E  REEE
HTEKENEEEEE —BERFE -

;;fE
=
=

FAAEETENFEREE -

Annual Report 2012 =& — —F % 6



(RN

Notes to the Financial Statements B #3R 7M1 3

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 REEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in
full.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.
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2.2

23

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards —
Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKAS 12 Amendments

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.
HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
— Government Loans?
Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial

HKFRS 7 Amendments

Liabilities?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

2.3
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #3R 7M1 3

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 Amendments HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
— Transition Guidance?

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKAS 27 (2011) HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments — Investment Entities®

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

HKAS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 1

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive

Income
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits?
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements?
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures?

HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities®
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2009-2011 Cycle HKFRSs issued in June 20122

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

FNEE AR S

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose
information about rights to set-off and related arrangements
(e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosures would provide
users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect
of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position.
The new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32
Financial Instruments. Presentation. The disclosures also apply
to recognised financial instruments that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement,
irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with
HKAS 32. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from
1 January 2018.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on
the basis of both the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the
approach for the classification and measurement of financial
assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS
9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions to HKFRS
9”) and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the
Additions to HKFRS 9 were carried forward unchanged from
HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement of
financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or
loss using the fair value option (“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities,
the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is
attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder of the change
in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation
of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO are
scoped out of the Additions to HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #3R 7M1 3

2.3

(RN

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets continues
to apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January
2015. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with
other phases, when the final standard including all phases is
issued.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all
entities including special purpose entities or structured entities.
It includes a new definition of control which is used to determine
which entities are consolidated. The changes introduced by
HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are controlled,
compared with the requirements in HKAS 27 and HK(SIC)-
Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10
replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements. It also addresses the issues
raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12. Based on the preliminary analyses
performed, HKFRS 10 is not expected to have any impact on
the currently held investments of the Group.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities previously
included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28
Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number of new
disclosure requirements for these entities.

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify the transition guidance
in HKFRS 10 and provide further relief from full retrospective
application of these standards, limiting the requirement to
provide adjusted comparative information to only the preceding
comparative period. The amendments clarify that retrospective
adjustments are only required if the consolidation conclusion
as to which entities are controlled by the Group is different
between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at the
beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 10 is applied
for the first time. Furthermore, for disclosures related to
unconsolidated structured entities, the amendments will remove
the requirement to present comparative information for periods
before HKFRS 12 is first applied.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December 2012
include a definition of an investment entity and provide an
exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet
the definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are
required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit
or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate
them. Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set
out the disclosure requirements for investment entities. The
Group expects that these amendments will not have any impact
on the Group as the Company is not an investment entity as
defined in HKFRS 10.

Conseqguential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and HKAS
28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011), HKAS 28 (2011), and the
subsequent amendments to these standards issued in July and
December 2012 from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the
circumstances in which the Group is required to use fair value,
but provides guidance on how fair value should be applied
where its use is already required or permitted under other
HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13 prospectively
from 1 January 2013.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Iltems that could be reclassified (or recycled)
to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, net gain on
hedge of a net investment, exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and
net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) would be
presented separately from items which will never be reclassified
(for example, actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans
and revaluation of land and buildings). The amendments will
affect presentation only and have no impact on the financial
position or performance. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2013.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #3R 7M1 3

2.3

(RN

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that range
from fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-
wording. The revised standard introduces significant changes
in the accounting for defined benefit pension plans including
removing the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial gains
and losses. Other changes include modifications to the timing
of recognition for termination benefits, the classification of
short-term employee benefits and disclosures of defined benefit
plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from 1
January 2013.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 January 2014.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued
in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2013. There are separate transitional provisions for each
standard. While the adoption of some of the amendments
may result in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact
on the Group. Those amendments that are expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s policies are as follows:
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
the difference between voluntary additional comparative
information and the minimum required comparative
information. Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must include
comparative information in the related notes to the
financial statements when it voluntarily provides
comparative information beyond the previous period.
The additional comparative information does not need to
contain a complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding period must be presented when an entity
changes its accounting policies; makes retrospective
restatements or makes reclassifications, and that change
has a material effect on the statement of financial position.
However, the related notes to the opening statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the preceding
period are not required to be presented.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies
that income taxes arising from distributions to equity
holders are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes. The amendment removes existing income
tax requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities to
apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to any income tax
arising from distributions to equity holders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #3R 7M1 3

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 31 FESTBREE

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
assets.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)
(ii
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

U

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #3R 7M1 3

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 FESTBREE#E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements  The shorter of the period of the
respective lease or 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 20% - 33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements
and furniture, fixtures and equipment under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct cost of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Trademarks, franchises, licenses and concession right

Purchased trademarks, licenses and concession right are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised
on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10
years.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #3R 7M1 3

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the income statement.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the income
statement in finance costs for loans and in other operating
expenses for receivables.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #53R 7M1 3

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to the income statement.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #53R 7M1 3

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 FESTBREE#E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 FESTBREE#E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  service income, when the service is rendered;

(c) commission income, on the completion of the transaction;
and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 FESTBREE#E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 25 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfiled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute 5% of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Dividends

Final dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
shareholders of the Company.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are currencies
other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of holding companies
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s financial policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no long exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.
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3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3.2 EESTHHERM&E (&)

ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2012
was RMB6,097,000 (2011: RMB4,600,000). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses for subsidiaries situated in Mainland
China at 31 December 2012 was RMB13,811,000 (2011:
RMB15,530,000). Further details of the Group’s deferred tax
are contained in note 22 to the financial statements.

Depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the different classes of property,
plant and equipment on a straight-line basis at applicable
depreciation rates over the estimated useful life. The useful
life is estimated with reference to the wear and tear history of
property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful life reflects
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group determines whether intangible assets are impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating. Estimating the value in
use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of intangible
assets at 31 December 2012 was RMB12,169,000 (2011:
RMB7,528,000). Further details are given in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on geographical areas and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) the Southern China region;
(i)  the Eastern China region; and
(i) the Northern China region

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which
is a measure of adjusted operating profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit before tax except that head office and corporate
income and expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

Information about major customers

There was no revenue from customers individually contributing
over 10% to the total revenue of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 73R Z<H1 3T

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4, RBELSIER(E)
Segment information about the business is presented below: T DIMERIZH T ¢
Segment revenue: PHbE
Sales to extemnal customers IPEPHE 133551 130761 364,824 33753 326387 277906 824742 746,003
Inter-segment sales PHREE - - 10,776 26,072 - - 10,776 26,072
133,551 130,761 375,600 363,608 326,337 277,906 835,488 172,275

Reconciiation: %
Eimination of nter-segment sales 7 R EE (10,776) (26,072
Revenue ey 824,712 746203
Segment results iR 7974 12,087 28,308 40,840 59,733 60,410 96,015 113,337
Reconciliation: i
Interest income FlEMA 2,332 623
Unallocated expenses Al (23,000 (38,569
Finance costs HERR - (689)
Profit before tax 3 hagil 75,257 74,707
Other segment information: A $&#
Depreciation of tems of ER e

property, plant and equipment it 8,874 7,369 16,702 14,168 14,189 9,832 39,765 31,369
Amortisation of intangible assets & BB - - 255 - 8 5 3 5
Gain/{oss) on disposal of ftems of ~ HEWE - BRERiRfE

property, plant and equipment BB W/ (B 409 - - &) - - 409 @)
Capital expenditure” BARY 28,382 2,8% 46,053 11,125 21,255 21,981 95,690 36,001

*

Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

For management proposes, segment revenue and segment
results are the two key indicators provided to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about the resource
allocation and assess performance. No segment assets and
liabilities information is presented as, in the opinion of the
directors, such information is not key indicator provided to the
Group’s chief operating decision maker.

The Group’s revenue are mainly arising from operating
restaurant only.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. RE&pIER(E)

Geographical information EER
All of the Group’s operations are located in the People’s REE A KEEBRHIMNFPEARERN
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group’s revenue from BI([HE]) - AEERBIINHEF R E
external customers and all of its non-current assets are located KMEFMBIEREEEHDN IR -
in the PRC.
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN, NET 5. W& - HtA RN FEE
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the WHBAAEB 7 S5 @  IEFRNKELEE
amount received and receivable for operation of restaurants, B B EW SRR (EHBRITIN RS
net of discounts and sales related taxes during the year. RATLIE) o
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gain, net is AREBEWZ - B A R FESITn
as follows: T
Revenue g
Gross revenue BT ZS 873,343 791,291
Less: sales related tax B SHERBETHIE (48,631) (45,088)
824,712 746,203
Other income and gain, net HaW AR W= FEEE
Bank interest income RITHEHA 3,210 1,092
Commission income # B BAL 11,122 10,082
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of property,  HEWZE  MELREER 2
plant and equipment zs,/ (E518) 409 (€)
Others HAh 3,645 3,427
18,386 14,598
# Commission income represents commission received or # 1S WA FE 5L 18 B R 2 0p = Y 3k fE
receivable in respect of sales of tea related products. Vet ik
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 73R Z<H1 3T

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBADEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: AREE BTN EHBR TFEHE -
Depreciation e 14 39,800 31,405
Amortisation of intangible assets B A = 15 1,117 848
Minimum lease payments under T RAEF S
operating leases of land and buildings B2 &EBERE 60,255 50,104
Contingent rents under operating leases* KERE
HAEE* 1,731 170
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEM & 650 2,646
Directors’ remuneration E= T 8 4,479 4,058
Employee benefit expense excluding EERAIFASZ(TE
directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration  $EE = RITIRAAE,
(note 8): <) (A7a28)
Wages and salaries I;ﬁ N 183,388 152,242
Equity-settled share option expense ARG E 2 R
TR 25 1,238 1,498
Pension scheme contributions IRIRETEI K
(defined contribution scheme)” (EEHER
st 17,812 15,328
202,438 169,068
Foreign exchange differences, net PE I = FE R %A 866 3,956

* Contingent rents under operating leases is included in “Rental * WEHEBEZARBLITAGE W m K
and related expenses” in the consolidated income statement. f fﬁg‘f\& Vizlzles -

A At 31 December 2012, the Group had no forfeited contributions A /JL@:%E ——FFZA=+—H  FEEB
available to reduce its contributions to the pension scheme in HEHORIHESL - AT LOBHR A R KGR IR AT
future years (2011: Nil). BB (—F——F  fF) -

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®ERK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEXK AN DT
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within 7B 11 4 NS E 1B 1Y
five years IRITERFIE - 688
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERTHAIZZHME
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, FR - EEBNTHAR NS IEE TR
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and the disclosure BN BEB RGN 2B EREWENT ¢
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as
follows:
Fees we 2,178 2,166
Other emoluments: H S
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He R REYHE 1,705 1,364
Performance related bonuses* FIRABEETEAT 573 528
Pension scheme contributions RIRFHEIH K 23 =
2,301 1,892
4,479 4,058
* Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus * ARNGIEFHITEFFENAT - 288
payments which are determined with reference to the profit for AEREZ L EFF A5 FIET ©
the year of the Group.
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHITEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FA - XN TEYLIIERTES 2HEE
during the year were as follows: s
Mr. Kwong Chi Keung SRR S A 146 105
Mr. Kwong Ping Man B RS A& 146 105
Mr. Cheung Kin Ting, Alfred oRERRE A 146 105
438 16
There were no other emoluments payable to the FA - BEEMENBLIFENTES
independent non-executive directors during the year WEHWN( T ——F 1 T) -
(2011: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 73R Z<H1 3T

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERTHHARZMNE (#)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and chief executive (b) BITESRITBAR
2012 —E-CF
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Yip Shu Ming (“Mr. Yip’) ERmEL(EELE]) 480 m 573 8 1,832
Mr. Chan Man Wai (“Mr. Chan’) BRXERE(TREE)) 390 - - 7 397
Mr. Ku Hok Chiu (‘Mr. Ku') E%M(WMJ) 390 - - - 390
Ms. Weng Peihe (Ms. Weng')* SEAR/NME([S/ME ) 480 934 - 8 1,422
1,740 1,705 573 23 4,041
2011 —2——&
Executive directors: HIES
Mr. Yip Shu Ming EELE 335 1,045 528 - 1,908
Mr. Chan Man Wai RXEEE 279 - - - 279
Mr. Ku Hok Chiu Rl iy 279 - - - 279
Ms. Weng Peihe* SR/ 958 319 - = 1217
1,851 1,364 528 - 3,743
There was no arrangement under which a director FREITTAREEEHRESRER
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any EEENE L HE -

remuneration during the year.

* Ms. Weng is also the chief executive of the Group. * B AT A E T TIEARE,
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. hEESHEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group included two AEBREZRSHEEREME(ZE——
(2011: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out FIWMB)ES  FNFBHN LA
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the 8o REEFH T =Z(ZE—F : =8)
remaining three (2011: three) highest paid employees who are e EE GEARRNAESNITHAR )N
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company, are as HENEB 25T
follows:
Basic salaries and other benefits in kind HAF & M EMEMF = 2,380 2,387
Pension scheme contributions RRET IR 30 24
2,410 2,411
The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest A T H M E M IEE B rTRARK R
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following B NEEMAZSHT

bands is as follows:

Nil to RMB1,000,000 T & AR¥1,000,0007T 2 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR#1, 000,001 2 A REE

1,500,0007T 1 1

3 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 73R Z<H1 3T

10. INCOME TAX 10.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
is exempted from income tax. It is not subject to tax in other
jurisdictions.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

Frig®t

ZAUN THAﬁﬂxﬁ%Iﬂﬁ}ﬂZ_L b 3 EA 5 P

135 o N B BABME M RDEEE AR
I8 o

H ity 75 2 RIS fRE?;ﬂK B P
HERLEER ZRITHEGFE

operates.
Group: REEH
Current charge for the year RNEZRARFA 21,757 28,086
Deferred (note 22) BIE(Hit22) (1,332) (4,105)
Total tax charge for the year RNEER IS A58 20,425 23,981

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the country in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense
at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable
rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the tax charge for the year is as

B MR AR B R E KB B8 A R P
BIZR 2 A TE B R S L BR A Al Ml st B 2 B2
HEMERERNRFE 2 HAER 21
B MOBABER(BNEERR) BARFEZH
AR SCEBRANT

follows:

Profit before tax BRA% A 4R A 75,257 74,707
Tax at the statutory tax rate rates  &)&TE 15 R 18,814 25.0 18,677 25.0
Effect of withholding tax at 5% A<= E R BB A

on the distributable profits of YIRS JfE/ﬁﬁ'JE'J

the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 5% BB E - - (452) ©.6)
Income not subject to tax AR 2 WA (2,009) (2.7) - -
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2 T 4,368 5.8 8,610 11.5
Tax losses utilised from previous &) 387 HARE 2 B 75

periods E5i8 (614) (0.8) ©11) (1.2)
Tax losses not recognised RIER BB EE 2,095 28 = -
Recognition of tax losses ERBARERS

previously not recognised THIEE 12 (1,836) (2.5) (1,897) (2.9)
Others HAh (393) (0.5) (46) (0.1)
Tax charge at the Group’s FRIEAREEERRF]

effective rate for the year RAE 7 HRERY 20,425 27.1 23,981 32.1
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11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 11. AR EHEE ABGEETR

COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company HE_E——#+-_A=+—HItEE "
for the year ended 31 December 2012 includes a profit of KRARER AELGRE B B2EIALA
RMB18,397,000 (2011: loss of RMB20,235,000) which has m B 75 s R 2 s M)A R % 18,397,000 7T
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note (ZZE——%F | FFEARK20,235,0007T)
24(p)). (Mi5E24(0)) ©

12. DIVIDENDS 12. KR

Proposed final — HK9.7 cents ERAHR S — AT EM
(2011: HK9.0 cents) per ordinary share Q.77
(ZZ——%F 1 9.08) 32,899 30,366

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the REFZFARPIEBBEFRDFREAE
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming [ERRBEFRE L& - FAEER -

annual general meeting.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 73R Z<H1 3T

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 415,691,016 (2011: 380,684,932) in issue
during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on:

27

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

13.

AATMEBRESREARGEZER
a7

BREARBF R IHBREARRD FEBRE
mEAEANEGAFE RN ERFRNBETYE
BAR IIAE T 80415,691,016 4% (—ZF——
F 1 380,684,932)51 & o

FREERNSBEIREBEANA R ERRE
DB ANRERNFEENE - SHEHMA
ZEBEBINETHRAFADEITEBRK
HEFHEE (Mt BEERERANATA
F) UREBRZMEFHE(ZEED
BRI P A BEG B B TR 8
A B EERTT) -

FRERNKEER NS E DA KIE L
T

RATEBREREE A

of the Company FE(S & A 54,832 50,726
Shares 8y
Weighted average number of ordinary shares £ A 2 2517 & 3@ AR hnE 7 15 8¢

in issue during the year 415,691,016 380,684,932
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares B AR A ] BT B AR AR

in respect of share options a2 1,448,726 1,085,666
Weighted average number of ordinary shares PR 518 A% 58 2 K| &Y

for the purpose of diluted earnings per share  Z3EA% HNFE FHE 417,139,742 381,770,598
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y BERRE

Group REH

31 December 2012 —E-—E+-fA=+-H
At 1 January 2012: RZE-——%—f—-H:

Cost R 178,521 37,812 2,682 4,791 223,806

Accumulated depreciation  23HH7E (103,772) (20,040) (1,134) - (124,946)

Net carrying amount RESE 74,749 17,772 1,548 4,791 98,860
At1January 2012, netof ~ RZE-——%#—F—H

acoumulated depreciation R Z:HE 74,749 17,772 1,548 4,791 98,860
Additions NE 62,771 18,765 862 8,245 90,643
Disposals il (436) (355) (213) - (1,004)
Depreciation provided ERFrERE

during the year (32,725) (6,553) (522) - (39,800)
Transfers R 4,791 - - (4,791) -
At 31 December 2012, netof RZE——F+=f

accumulated depreciation ~ =1+—H KRR E 109,150 29,629 1,675 8,245 148,699
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+_f

=q=F:

Cost R 241,686 53,817 2,901 8,245 306,649

Accumulated depreciation  23HH7E (132,536) (24,188) (1,226) - (157,950)

Net carrying amount FEEE 109,150 29,629 1,675 8,245 148,699
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 73R ZHI 3T

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

14. 9% - BERRE (&)

Group (Continued) KEE(E)

31 December 2011 “E--%4+-A=1+-H
At 1 January 2011: R-F—%—-8-H:

Cost A 144,765 30,278 1,889 11,468 188,400

Accumulated depreciation  23HHTE (77,728) (15,050) (765) - (93,543)

Net carrying amount FEFE 67,037 16,208 1,124 11,468 94,857
At1January 2011, netof ~ R=Z—%—-A-1"

accumulated depreciation bR 25HTE 67,037 15,208 1,124 11,468 94,857
Additions NE 22,975 6,659 793 4,990 35,417
Disposals hE = ) = = 9
Depreciation provided ERFrERE

during the year (26,044) (499 (369) - (31,405)
Transfers B 10,781 886 - (11,667) =
At 31 December 2011, netof R=ZE——5F+=f

accumulated depreciaion ~ =1+—H ' KR R E 74,749 17,772 1,548 4,791 98,860
At 31 December 2011: RZE—&F+_=f

==

Cost AR 178,521 37,812 2,682 4,791 223,806

Accumulated depreciation  23HHTE (108,772) (20,040) (1,134) - (124,946)

Net carrying amount FEFE 74,749 17,772 1548 4,791 98,860
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. BEE

31 December 2012 —E-—%+4+—H
S

Cost at 1 January 2012, netof R—ZE——&—A—H
accumulated amortisation LA 3R RET

B 3,950 3,578 - 7,528
Additions RE 758 - 5,000 5,758
Amortisation provided FNEHRE
during the year (474) (393) (250) (1,117)
At 31 December 2012 N-ZE—=—&F+=8
== 4,234 3,185 4,750 12,169
At 31 December 2012: R-—E——F+—-H
=9—=F:
Cost [D#N 5,327 4,127 5,000 14,454
Accumulated amortisation RETEE (1,093) (942) (250) (2,285)
Net carrying amount REFE 4,234 3,185 4,750 12,169
31 December 2011 —E——%+4+ZH
=t+-H
At 1 January 2011: NZT—%F
—HA—R:
Cost B 3,985 4,127 = 8,112
Accumulated amortisation 2T (182) (138) = (320)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 3,803 3,989 = 7,792

Cost at 1 January 2011, netof R=Z——%—HF—H
accumulated amortisation Z@Z$ MR 25T

i 3,803 3,989 - 7,792
Additions RNE 584 - - 584
Amortisation provided FNEHRE
during the year (437) @11 - (848)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%F+=H
== 3,950 3,578 - 7,528
At 31 December 2011 and R-E—F+=H
1 January 2012: =t—Hk
—T—5-f-H:
Cost AR 4,569 4,127 - 8,696
Accumulated amortisation RETEH 619) (549) = (1,168)
Net carrying amount RESE 3,950 3,578 - 7,528
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 73R ZHI 3T

15.

16.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

All of the Group’s licenses and franchises were acquired from
third parties and the trademark was purchased from a related
party. The intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over 10
years.

Licenses and franchises represent the carrying amount of the
brand name “Pepper Lunch” franchise. The franchise entitles
the Group to develop and operate fast food restaurants under
the brand name of Pepper Lunch for 10 years from the date of
acquisition.

The trademark represents the carrying amount of the “Tang
Palace” trademark and license, acquired in 2010. The license
entitles the Group to use the trademark for 10 years from the
date of acquisition upon the transfer of trademark to the Group
completed on 6 January 2011.

The concession right represents the carrying amount of
consideration paid to the previous tenant of a restaurant of
the Group to buy out the tenancy agreement. The concession
right is recognised as an intangible asset with a finite economic
life of 10 years, which represents the term of the new tenancy
agreement the Group has entered into.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost

REMRLD - AR

15.

16.

BEE(A)

AEEHNRERFTEESEEE =T
BEEEHEME=T - BLEEABAR
AERAFR - ZFBTVEEDRERAT
F AR

B M RTRE T R BRI S | R A Y
FREE - FFRTER TARKEERN B B A
HIEA0F LAl #AIET /5 | n b 3 /R S 8 &
RESE

BRER_Z-TFUBNEE IBRK
BIERREE - ZEETASERFN=
T——F-ARNAZKARKEERET
& B UHE BB 10F NER BT -

Rt e EE N T ASE —RERANHE
PZRENKREE  AEHZEERS -
R ERDERRBILEE  ARKE
FRATF  NAKER] 2 HERZ
ZEH -

REBARMIRE

7,097 7,097

The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the
Company’s non-current assets of RMB112,853,000 (2011:
RMB123,051,000) are unsecured, interest-free and not
expected to be paid within the next twelve months from the
end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, these advances are considered as quasi-equity
loans to the subsidiaries. In the prior year, the amounts due
to subsidiaries included in the Company’s current liabilities of
RMB1,688,000 were unsecured, interest-free and are repayable
within one year.
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16.

Beijing Chaobei Tang Palace
F&B Co., Ltd. 7

ERBLE=EHHRR
BRRR]™"

Beijing Excellent Tang Palace
F&B Co., Ltd. 7"

EREtEZHR
AR

Beijing Haoyuan Tanggong
Seafood Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7"

EREBE=EHHER

/D\Ej./../,\

Beijing Mingzu Tanggong
Seafood Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7"

T RREER S
BRAR

Beijing New Century Tanggong
Seafood Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7"
IRt E =8t
AR

Beijing Well Excellent Tang
Palace F & B Co., Ltd. 7
IRAZEEZHRER

Z\\Ej’/”//\

Beijing Well Excellent Tang
Palace Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7"
TrBEEEEHHER

//:\\Ej‘/“//\

Mainland China
FEIA

Mainland China
Bl At

Mainland China
FEI A

Mainland China
HEIAH

Mainland China
HEIA

Mainland China
HREIA

Mainland China
R EIA

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000/ 7

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000/ 70

RMBS3,000,000
AK#3,000,0007

RMB5,000,000
AE#5,000,0007

RMB3,000,000
AE#3,000,0007

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000/ 7

RMB5,000,000
AE#5,000,00070

16. RIBARWRE(HF)

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations

FEMBATFEOT -
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Restaurant operations
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16.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Dongguan Expo Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7"
SEES G
BRAR"

Hangzhou Well Excellent Tang
Palace Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7"

MMEEE=Z B
BRAR™

Ninja House Jiangnan Cuisine
F & B (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. 7
RERTLE—SFAR(RI)
BRAR "

Shanghai Changning Tang
Palace Seafood Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7"

HEREE=BEY
ARAR] "

Shanghai Hongkou Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7

R OE=RES
BRRA"

Shanghai Honggiao Tang
Palace Seafood Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7"

LBABE=REY
BRAR] "

Shanghai Minhang Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7"
HERTEEEEY
ERAR""

Mainland China
B

Mainland China
B

Mainland China
R EI A

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
R EI A

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
Bl A

HK$3,000,000
3,000,0007%7T

RMB3,000,000
AE#3,000,0007T

HK$2,000,000
2,000,000 7

HK$3,000,000
3,000,007

RMB13,500,000
ARH13,500,0007

RMB6,000,000
AK#6,000,0007C

USD480,000
480,00057T

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR E R A |

RIE X BNIRE (&)
100 100  Restaurant operations
100 100  Restaurant operations
100 100  Restaurant operations
BEER
100 100  Restaurant operations
R
100 100  Restaurant operations
BEER
100 100  Restaurant operations
REEE
100 100  Restaurant operations
KB



16.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Shanghai Pudong Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7"
HERRE=RES
AR

Shanghai Tang Palace Food
Co., Ltd. "
FREERmAERAA

Shanghai Well Excellent Tang
Palace F & B Co., Ltd. 7

TEREERENR
BRAR™"

Shanghai Yangpu Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7/

LEBEED B
BRART"

Shenzhen Well Excellent Tang
Palace F & B Co., Ltd.

REERHEEERR
BRRE"

Suzhou Well Excellent Tang
Palace Restaurant
Co., Ltd. 7/
HNGEE= BN
BRRE "

Tang’s Cuisine (Macau)
Limited *

EEERaR(RM)—A
BARRAE]

Vital Pepper (Beijing)
Management Co., Ltd. 7

EARROLR) ERER
ERAR

Vital Pepper (Shanghai)
Management Co., Ltd. 7"

ENHER( L8 BRER
ERRE""

Mainland China
hE,

Mainland China
HREIA

Mainland China
B

Mainland China
Bl At

Mainland China
B

Mainland China
Bl At

Macau

AP

Mainland China
Bl At

Mainland China
HREIA

USD150,000
150,000% 7

USD150,000
150,000% 7T

RMBS3,000,000
AE#3,000,0007T

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000 7T

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000/ 70

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000/ 7T

MOP6,000,000
%%6,000,0007T

RMB21,000,000
AR#21,000,0007C

USD2, 100,000
2,100,000

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100
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16. RIBARWRE(HF)

Restaurant operations

Food productions

BERM

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 73R ZHI 3T

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

*

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network

** These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under Mainland China law.

" The company names in English of the Company’s subsidiaries
disclosed above are for identification only.

17. INVENTORIES 17.

REBEARNIRE (&)

ESRR - LRAIIAEEREFERE
SBAAEEEEFELTERLDHARA]
MHELR - EFRR - REAEHERF
HBAERARTIE -

Y KB ENER (B KA MK EE
B E SRR AT K B 2 5] g

o REINE L AR B A Z A
BEINELE °

N ERARRFINE L A2 EXE R E
Bl e

Food and beverages, and other operating & fa M S0EHA MBI 275 H)

items for restaurant operations Hfbe 218 B 24,048 20,151
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EZRHEMEWKIE
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 10,119 8,403 - =
Prepayments B A 12,743 7,914 - =
Deposits and other receivables &4 K ELAt EUL 71 1B 20,881 14,381 117 66
43,743 30,698 117 66
Less: Rental deposits classified 5 : D 1B AIEREERE
as non-current assets ZHekE (16,802) (13,367) - =
26,941 17,331 117 66

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR E R A |



18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is ranging from 30 to 80 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date and net of provisions, is
as follows:

18.

BE REEWEE(E)

AEEHRETEFZRGEREZENE
B ZEHNFI0ES0H - BELEFPHEA
ZE MR o ZNS B ¥ H R U ol fE g SR IE 4
BEEZES - aREEES T ENE
gr o R LM URAEEZE SEK
HEERZHHHEFER MW E\EKRE
EEPRR  AEBYEREE SRR
HESRFETMERRKEMEERAR
i o BBRKFELREE -

REZEH - BHRUERHREHRZ
RRER AT (FNERBEE) T

Within 30 days 308K 8,422 6,049
31 to 60 days 31260H 1,007 1,075
61 to 90 days 61%290H 173 438
Over 90 days 90HB A F 517 841

10,119 8,403

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

3 48 B 534 5 8 (L 2 I8
2 B HTT

Neither past due nor impaired FReEAsk R (B 8,422 6,049
1-30 days past due AHI1E30H 1,007 1,075
31-60 days past due #HA31 260 H 173 438
Over 60 days past due #HIGOH PA £ 517 841

10,119 8,403
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 73R ZHI 3T

18.

19.

20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

None of the assets of deposits and other receivables are
either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in
the prepayments, deposits and other receivables related to
receivables for which there was no history of default.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. In the opinion of directors, the
directors, shareholders and beneficial owners of those related
companies are the common directors and major shareholders
of the Company.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

18.

19.

20.

B5 REEWEE(A)

REHRRE 2 BUIREZ B BEP
BRE - iR B S R SR ACER o

RiE AR B 2 R MR B — B R P
Bl REERAKEBRFBERLE -
AERNEER  ARREFEAR ARG
EERVESAEY - MAERDBR SR
AEUE - FBAEZ S ERIERER
o

BiEARE SR E 2 1RE N H YR IA
BE ° st ATANFUR - 12E AR
AZeMEERBKRERH - MALEE
WORTA Y S R 40 8% o

FESBRE 2 T RIR
HEIENR BRI EER - R EWAR
BREE -BERR REWERRZE

= BERMESBEAAR/RNRRZHARE
ENFERR -

RekAEEE

Cash and bank balances IR NIR{T6EH 219,383 199,449 1,017 2,069
Time deposits EHER 46,022 94,118 - —
Cash and cash equivalents ;4 MBS EE 265,405 293,567 1,017 2,069

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group held in the Mainland China amounted
to RMB213,132,000 (2011: RMB170,592,000). The RMB
held in the mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR E R A |

RREBR - AEBERFEANEE 2R
& MIRTTHE R E AR K 213,132,000 (=
T——4F : AR¥170,592,0007T) A
R BEREE 2 ARBET 5 HERA
HaE® - Rl - BEFBEAHBAINES
BIEDI R AEE - SERMEETERTE @ K
EEEEBARERITEARBEY AH
HEHE - LAETTINE SR o



21.

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 20. RERRELEE(H)
Certain of the Group’s cash at banks earns interest at floating REBETHRATESIRENIBEITERED
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time FMEZZHERGBEIMFE - METHEF
deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and RZHRE—BE=HAATE  RITARE
three months depending on the immediate cash requirements BRI EERIMTE @ WILHE 22 H
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term FHIZER B REEF B o $RITERTIFE
time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with PEERFZIRITHIBE I EAE /R RIELL
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. 8% o
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EZRHEMEMNRKIE
Trade payables O ANE 39,789 33,696 - =
Other payables and HENZER
accruals JEFTRIE 23,755 18,974 1,006 373
Salary and welfare payables JE[JE4 kg7 22,474 26,537 - =
Receipts in advance TEURIE 42,326 28,483 - -
128,344 107,690 1,006 78

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

REREH  BHENREBRREHRZ
BRI DI T

Within 30 days 30HA 36,050 30,519
31 to 60 days 31260H 1,796 1,497
61 to 90 days 61290H 452 451
91 to 180 days 912180H 557 301
Over 180 days 180H LA E 934 928

39,789 33,696

The trade and other payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 30-day to 90-day terms.

B 5 NEMENZRIEAT BB ENI0
HZ90HHIEAEE -

Annual Report 2012

—e——xen @



Notes to the Financial Statements B 73R 3% M5

22. DEFERRED TAX 22, JEIERIIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the FR - EEHIBABELREENEENNT
year are as follows:

Group rER
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIRE (&
Undistributable
profits of
the PRC
subsidiaries Others Total
FEKEA A
NG T | Hith #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT AREBTIT
At 1 January 2011 R=—F—%—H—H 1,402 - 1,402
Deferred tax credited to the FREERIBA
income statement Wes3k (H1aE10)
during the year (note 10) (452) = (452)
At 31 December 2011 and R-_ZE—F+_H
1 January 2012 =+—HK
—E——_F—H—H 950 - 950
Deferred tax charged to the FNELERRTER
income statement RN (A 10)
during the year (note 10) - 165 165
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——F
+=—A=+—H 950 165 1,115

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED EB'E (FFEl){ZIRER AT



22. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2011 Jra—_es

22, RSEBLE(E)

AR ()

BREHIEEE

—F—H—H 947

Deferred tax credited to the income statement  ERERIERI BT A= (A72E710)

during the year (note 10) 3,653
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 RZE—F+-A=T—HK
—E——F%—HF—H 4,600
Deferred tax credited to the income statement  F RUEER B+ AU S TR (H15210)
during the year (note 10) 1,497
At 31 December 2012 R_E——F+-_A=+—H 6,097

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB38,199,000 (2011: RMB33,931,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of approximately RMB24,388,000
(2011: RMB18,401,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining losses of
approximately RMB13,811,000 (2011: RMB15,530,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

REERPRANMEEZER—E2RFA
FIH 2 i TE B 1B A R #638,199,0007T ( =
T——4F : AR%33,931,0007T) 7] AR
BHELEZSBRZ S AR ZRKRERK
w=A o BERABEEY ARK24,388,000
T(ZF——F : AR¥18,401,0007T)
BMRELERIBEBEE - AR EEEAR
HomFm WA REEBEEREOAR
13,811,000 (Z T ——4F : ARK
15,530,0007C ) ERIELEFIIBE E ©

RIBRBEBEMAEVE » FEAMALZ
SMERELEXAIINEREET R ZREA
BM10% 2 AR - ZREBE-FZN
F-A-BBREY WEAR -TTLF
TA=ZT—HAZBREEZERN - EHE
A MSNE IR B 2 BLARER B ER IR
e - B BESR AR 2 TRFNTR LK - 5L
AREEME @ EARERE% - Bt - K&
ERSHERBEAMK 2B AR —F
ENF-A—RARELZBFMADIKZK
BEFEHIT R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 73R ZHI 3T

22,

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Group (Continued)
Deferred tax assets (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary difference associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries was approximately RMB207,195,000 (2011:
RMB132,216,000), while the amount of temporary differences
associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was
approximately RMB188,195,000 (2011: RMB113,216,000).
No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of
these differences because the Group is in a position to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that such differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

22, RSEBIE ()
REE (&)
PR EE ()

RBEHR - B RARARDIREFEBZ
T EREEEN A AREE207,1950007T
(ZZ——%F : AR¥132,216,0007T) °
MABEREEERBEGEZEBNEA
AIRDREF2EREZERBTLHNAAR
#188,195000 L (—ZF——4F : AR
113,216,0007T) » WEFHZE = R ERIE
EFIBEE - TYRR A S B LT H# =
ZERER KR MZEEEEAER
SRS EE B TR ©

AN T FRR B S AR B 4 E A AT (A TS

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. i o
23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. BA&
Shares [iivi)
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 (2011: 2,000,000,000%%
2,000,000,000) ordinary (ZB—F .
shares of HK$0.10 (2011: 2,000,000,000)
HK$0.10) each BREE10ET
(ZF—%:
0.10787T) 2 E B 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREARE -
416,116,000 416,116,0008%
(2011: 415,000,000) (Z5—%:
ordinary shares of HK$0.10  415,000,000/%)
(2011: HK$0.10) each BREE010ET
(ZB——%:
0.1077T) 2 L imAk 41,612 34,944 41,500 34,853

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR E R A |



23. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 23. RA(4&)

Shares (Continued) IR0 (4&)
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference KEFEEZRGMEBLRERRRZEER
to the movements in the Company’s authorised and issued BETEMRES BT

ordinary share capital is as follows:

Authorised: JARE -
At the date of incorporation and R AL B 8 R
at 31 December 2010 —E-FF+A
=+—H 2,000,000 200
Increase in authorised share capital 18405k E IR AN (a) 1,998,000,000 199,800

At 31 December 2011, 1 January 2012 R =_Z——F+_H

and 31 December 2012 =+t—H —E—=—F
—A—RAER==F——%
+=A=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000
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23. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 23. WA (4E)
Shares (Continued) 15 (4&)
Issued and fully paid: EEITRERE ¢
At 1 January 2011 R_E——4F
—H—H 1 = =
Issue of shares pursuant to  1RIEZNEE 2
the Group Reorganisation ~ B4831TA%D @) 1,999,999 200 168
Issue of shares pursuant to  1B#EE R 3E1T
the capitalisation issue BT (D (b) 298,000,000 29,800 25,027
Issue of shares pursuant to  1RiE 2 EREsE
the global offering BEITIE D (©) 100,000,000 10,000 8,398
Issue of shares on the {T{E B RER R R
exercise of over-allotment TR (D
option d) 15,000,000 1,500 1,260
At 31 December 2011 and WZZE——F
1 January 2012 +=ZA=+—HXK
—E—_4F
—H—H 415,000,000 41,500 34,853
Issue of shares on the 1TERE PR e AT
exercise of share options ~ ZE1THZ % @) 1,116,000 112 91
At 31 December 2012 RZT—=F
+=ZA=+—H 416,116,000 41,612 34,944

Notes: Hiaz -

(@)  Pursuant to the written resolution passed on 25 March 2011, (@ RERN-_F-—F-A_t+HHBENE
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from RS ANA A R 1,998,000,000
HK$200,000 to HK$200 million, divided into 2,000 million shares, B & I E{E0.1078 JTLHI B D » A5 AE X
by the creation of additional authorised shares of 1,998 million 7K 1 200,0007% 7T 3% 1 Z 200,000,00078
of HK$0.10 each. On the same day, the Company acquired 7T * % £32,000,000,000 & i 17 © 5% A
the entire equity interest of China Tang Palace F&B Enterprise H ' KAABRREE BEEERGTEE
Limited (“Tang Palace BVI") from Mr. Chan, Mr. Yip and Mr. Y#EChina Tang Palace F&B Enterprise
Ku in consideration of issuing an aggregate of 1,999,999 shares Limited([ Tang Palace BVIJ)E’U’%%BH/_Q
with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each, as to 999,999 shares # - RERMAEITA 1,999,000 F
to Best Active Investments Limited, 700,000 shares to Current R EEO. 10 L AR 9+ E A 999,999 %
Success Investment Limited and 300,000 shares to Bright Mind %5 FBest Active Investments Limited
Investments Limited. 700,000 f& B 13 T Current Success

Investments Limited %300,0008% /%5 F
Bright Mind Investments Limited °

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR E R A |



23. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(®)

Pursuant to the written resolutions of all shareholders entitled to
vote at general meetings of the Company, which were passed
on 25 March 2011, an amount of approximately HK$29.8
million (presented as RMB25,027,000) standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company was capitalised
at the Listing Date and applied to pay up in full at par a total
of 298,000,000 new shares for allotment and issued to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appeared on the
register of members of the Company on 25 March 2011 and
details of which are set out in the section headed “Statutory and
General Information” in Appendix V to Prospectus.

On 19 April 2011, 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.65 by way of
global offering. On the same date, the Company’s shares were
listed on the Stock Exchange. The proceeds of HK$10,000,000
(equivalent to RMB8,398,000) representing the par value of the
shares of the Company, were credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$155,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB130,165,000), before issuing expenses, were credited to
share premium account.

On 26 April 2011, 15,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.65 pursuant
to an over-allotment option. The proceeds of HK$1,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,260,000) representing the par value of the
shares of the Company, were credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$23,250,000 (equivalent
to RMB19,526,000) before issuing expenses, were credited to
share premium account.

During the year, 1,116,000 share options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$0.825 per share (note 25), resulting in
the issue of 1,116,000 share of HK$0.1 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$921,000 (RMB751,000).
The proceeds of HK$112,000 (equivalent to RMB91,000)
representing the par value of the shares of the Company,
were credited to the Company share capital. The remaining
proceeds of HK$809,000 (equivalent to RMB660,000) before
issuing expenses, were credited to share premium. An amount
of HK$1,165,000 (RMB944,000) was also transferred from the
share option reserve to the share premium account upon the
exercise of the share options.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 25 to the financial statements.

23. RA(#&)

w4 (&)

et -

(b)

(#)

BEEERAAFBERGKENDE
BER-_ZE——F=A= +£HLLm
EMAZRR  HEREARRRMDRER

ﬁ%%@m&mmﬁ&ﬂiﬂﬁAE
& 25,027,0007C ) R FIBR £ H 2
BEER  UEANRREEHRA &
298,000,000R% ¥ & 17 + AR B & 31T T
R-B——F=A - +HAZIERRTK
REGRMOAQFIRLER - BEFBIHARA
RERRMISEREE R —RER | —Ff -

RZZF——FWMA+IH  UEEREE
F N R (EA1.657 70317100,000,000
AR AR A= EE010E T L AR -
BB > KARWKRMHERZAH LT -
Ffr 15 3 710,000,000 7T (HHE R AR
8,398,000 T ) HHE M AN A &) IR 17
B DHIARRBBRAR - HEFTE
X T8 155,000,000 7 7T (485 A A R #
130,165,0007T) &% 1T + WHI AR
mfER -

R-ZEBE——FEMA=-+x8 - RBIEBEE
BERS 4 - 12 BH&1.65/870357715,000,000
A% AN A & AR EEO. 1078 TT Y i@ A% o
FT 15 50 1F1,500,000 78 7t (8 E 1 A R
# 1,260,000 ) HHE R AR A8 R G5
HE - DIALRR Tﬁﬁﬁx$ HerAT
153X 7E 23,250,00078 7L (FEE N AR
19,526,00070 ) A FIBR 277 5 S A J5 51 A
1w EER -

RARERE » 1,116,00010 B R E LR EE
FR%0.825 5 LT (KI7E25) » BfFEs
771,116,000/ F AL EEO. 1 T 2 I 1D
R B RE IR AT £921,00078 7T
(ARM751,0007T) ° FT15 5 38112,000
BT (BN ARK,000T) @ HER
AABIGEE - THFARRRKIPEA ©
H A PT15 FUIE809,0008 7T (HMENAR
#660,0007T ) RINBRE 1T X AT J9 5 A
A& 173 (E B o ©%58.51,165,000/8 7L (FHE
B AR®944,0007T ) TR BB RE A 1T (E
#HRBREFEEERERM SER -

B

ZIN/N
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #53R 7M1 3

(RN

24. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 73
of the financial statements.

Statutory general reserve

Statutory general reserve represents the appropriation
of 10% of profit after taxation determined based on the
relevant accounting rules and regulations of the PRC as
required by the Articles of Association of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may cease to apply if
the balance of the statutory general reserve has reached
50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.

Other reserve

Other reserve includes: (a) the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by Tang
Palace BVI and the nominal value of share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired by Tang Palace BVI, (b) the
deemed contribution from a controlling shareholder of
RMB1,866,000 arising on the acquisition of remaining
10% equity interest in Meco Petrochemical Limited
from Mr. Hui Yui Chuen (“Mr. Hui”), a non-controlling
shareholder, by Mr. Chan, a founder shareholder of the
Company, on 23 December 2009 and representing
the unaudited combined net assets value of Meco
Petrochemical Limited attributable to Mr. Hui as at 30
November 2009 reclassified from non-controlling interests
as deemed contribution by Mr. Chan, (c) the difference
between the subscription price and the nominal value
of the shares allotted and issued by Tang Place BVI of
RMB35,014,000 and the deemed contribution from
controlling shareholders of RMB107,215,000 and (d)
the difference between the nominal value of 1,999,999
shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company’s issued share
capital and the entire issued share capital of Tang Palace
BVI of US$50,000 eliminated as a result of the Group
Reorganisation.
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FEW

AEERNAER RBEFE S
ERUNHEB S HRAHRESTS
B2 GAEEBEN -

AT — AR

AR BT E A A E R AR
RE - ARBERETESRAE
B TE AR R M 10% BMAOEE —
MRS - WATE — R fFEERERETE
FE AR E AR#50% » BIFT 42 1E
B -

H

Hith##53E(a) Tang Palace BVIE 3
TR AE{EEATang Palace BVIU
BB ARRAEE EHERE - ()
AARARRIBIHAREREENR-Z
ENFE+-_A-+=HR—RIEEK
ERFFRRAE(FREDREES
At THR A FFIER10% M i
EERREZERRERIED RARE
1,866,0007T ' IR =—ZEZENF+—
A=+ B rERGEESARIETE
RABIAGEEZAHEEFE Bk
RS s BT D SEIERR ST AR IE D
ik X (c) Tang Palace BVIfD 2 & 217
MBRMRBEEAEFANEEAR
#35,014,0007C JA 2 B ¥R IR IR SR
R ED Ik AR #107,215,0007T
RA)VARFEBITRAFZREE
0.178 7T £ 1,999,999 A% A% 17 I {E £2 ih
Tang Palace BVIF 22 21 THAEE
BB M BRI AS50,000%E T EE 2 fE
HIZRE ©



24. RESERVES (Continued)

24. f#E(AE)

(b) Company (b) ARAF
Balance at 1 January 2011 AT ——4F
—A—Bz#&H% = = - -
Total comprehensive loss ~ FE L HEEEE
for the year - = (20,235) (20,235)
Issue of shares by FRBRMDRERE
capitalisation of share B TR
premium account 23(b) (25,027) - - (25,027)
Issue of shares at a premium EBE X AFHEE
through initial public BREETRG
offering 23(c) 130,165 - - 130,165
Issue of shares at a premium & :B1T{F B8
through exercise of the [ 2=
over-allotment option BTN 23(d) 19,526 - - 19,526
Transaction costs attributable 277X {7 FEIE 32 5
to issue of shares B (10,558) = = (10,558)
Equity-settled share option ~ JARR R4 E 2
arrangement AR 25 = 1,498 - 1,498
At 31 December 2011 RZZT——4
+=-BA=+—H 114,106 1,498 (20,235) 95,369
Total comprehensive income 8 2 E U548 58
for the year - - 18,397 18,397
Equity-settled share option AR ANAEE
arrangement g Srerld 25 - 1,238 - 1,238
Exercise of share option 1Tl AR 23(e) 1,604 (944) - 660
Share options lapsed F KR B R
during the year - (227) 227 -
Final 2011 dividend declared &k —ZE——4F
REARZ B, (30,530) - - (30,530)
At 31 December 2012 R-T——F
+=—B=+—H 85,180 1,565 (1,611) 85,134
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 25, LR EBERNRRS

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution passed on 25 March 2011 by
the shareholders of the Company, the Group adopted a Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme. On 25 March 2011, share options
to subscribe for an aggregate of 4,000,000 shares were
granted to 68 senior management and employees at a nominal
consideration of HK$1 for each grant. The directors confirmed
that no further share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme has been or will be granted.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
recognise and reward the contribution of certain directors,
senior management and employees of the Group to the growth
and development of the Group and the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange.

The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
the followings:

(i) The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may only be granted
from 25 March 2011 to 31 March 2011.

(i)  The exercise price of the share option granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 50% of the final offer
price in connection with the Company’s international
placing and initial public offering (i.e. HK$1.65 per share)
and are exercisable and vested in the following manner:

e up to 30% of the options granted may be
exercised on or prior to the end of the second
year after the Listing Date;

° up to 60% of the options granted may be exercised
on or prior to the end of the third year after the
Listing Date; and

° all outstanding options may be exercised prior to
the expiry on the day falling four years after the
Listing Date.
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 25. DR AHERARRS (&)
(Continued)

The following table disclosed movement in the Company’s TREEARABRENERNZ EBER
share options during the year:

Tranche 1 26/8/2011- 20/4/2012- HK$0.825 1,200,000 - 1,116,000 - 84,000 - HKS$1.0439
Eaid 19412012 201402015 082587 1043987
Tranche 2 25/3/2011- 20/42013- HK$0.825 1,200,000 - - - 171,000 1020000 HK$1.0615
54 100412013 201412015 082577 1061587
Tranche 3 25/3/2011- 20/42014- HKS$0.825 1,600,000 - - - 228,000 1372000 HKS1.0708
o 19/4/2014 201412015 082577 10708%7C
4,000,000 - 1,116,000 - 483,000 2,401,000
The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately EEBREITE B BT 2 IR hikE L
before the date on which the share options were exercised was MERITEL(ZE——F : BERER
HK$1.67 (2011: No share options were exercised). 17f8) ©
The fair value of the share options at the date of grant REHBRZ B ARTEENET
determined using the binomial option pricing model is fE RN FEHR4,240,0008 7 © A&
approximately HK$4,240,000. The Group recognised a BREZANFABEBARRBEFERTE
total expense of approximately HK$1,527,000 (equivalent to f&tE 2 B F S #91,5627,0008 7T (FEE R A
RMB1,238,000) (2011: RMB1,498,000) during the year in R#1,238000C)(—T——F : AR
relation to the options granted by the Company in the prior 1,498,0007T) °
year.
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value ATEBEREATERERANEERERE
of the share options are based on the management’s best RERE&EZM BRENEED
estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables RIZREETBBRR2BHEMAEL TR
of a number of subjective assumptions. Any change in the HE - AN RBZSEHMEHIREE - 7]
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the s BEREATEZMFTEEERNE

i T
&

lﬂh

o

fair value of an option.
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 25, LIRMABERNRRE (F)

(Continued)

The major inputs into the models at the grant date were as
follows:

R HHE ARA T Z8ERNT

Expected share price as at grant date R L B TREAR(E HK$1.6578 7T
Exercise price 1B E HK$0.825# 7T
Expected volatility TEHRR I8 59.07%

Expected life TEHAE U 2.6-3.6%F years
Risk-free rate mE bR B E 1.797%
Dividend vyield % B W e 2 0%
Early exercise level RRITHEKF 3.5f&times

The risk-free rate has made reference to the yield of HK
Exchange Fund Notes (EFN) as at the grant date. The volatility
of the Company’s stock was determined by reference to the
share price volatilities of companies in similar line of business
of the Company and assumed to be constant throughout the
option life.

The 1,116,000 shares options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 1,116,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$112,000 (RMB91,000)
and share premium of HK$809,000 (RMB660,000) (before
issue expenses), as further detailed in note 23(e) to the financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 2,401,000
share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 2,401,000 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital of HK$240,000
(RMB195,000) and share premium of HK$1,741,000
(RMB1,411,000) (before issue expenses).
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26.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 26. #aB&REBRME
FLOWS
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group HE-T——-F+-A=1T—HIEFE"
acquired items of property, plant and equipment from the sole AREHEMSENEHEE - ABRA A
shareholder of Golden Jaguar Food and Beverage Management ([SHRHEBE ) 7 E—REWEDE K
Limited (“Golden Jaguar F&B”). The acquisition was made EREEER - WEBESHEUKNBESENE
by way of acquiring 100% equity interest in Golden Jaguar R2100% M2 F#ETT > BiIt &8
F&B and since then, Golden Jaguar F&B became a wholly- NERKEBANEEB2ENBAR - MER
owned subsidiary of the Group, and the company name was AABER TN AESESRERCRY)—
subsequently changed to Tang’s Cuisine (Macau) Limited. ANBERAF] -
This transaction was accounted for as purchase of assets rather TEXSAEYABKEEEMIIEESLS
as business combination because Golden Jaguar F&B had not - REEeBPNEHNKEBISEE
carried out any significant business transactions at the date of MERER  rHERFELENREMRE
acquisition. The net outflow of cash and cash equivalents from EERDFERMRGEESRER @ 1F
this acquisition reflected in the consolidated statement of cash RERFMEEECREREZLH 2 — &
flows as part of the cash flow movement in individual assets e
acquired.
The asset acquired in the acquisition of Golden Jaguar F&B WRESENERFEEENT ¢
was as follows:

Asset acquired: FISEEE

Property, plant and equipment G 9,780

Satisfied by: AR :

Cash Re 9,780

An analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the above acquisition was as follows:

Cash consideration and net outflow of cash and
cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary

SR - Re MR FERLF
BZAMT

Wi — I B AR 2 e REA KR
Re MReFERLFER

9,780
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 73R ZH1 3T

27.

28.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its restaurants, staff quarters and
office premises under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
restaurants are negotiated for terms ranging from three to ten
years (2011: three to ten years), while leases for staff quarters
and office premises are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to three years (2011: one to three years).

At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

27.

REHERH

AEBFBLEHELHEBEETER
BETIBEEMRAEAR - EEEEFHH
ERNF=FE+F(ZT—F: =FF
TF) MEIEERHAEREEEFH

FEANT—FE=F(—T—F: —F
E=4F)o
N_ZT——F+-_A=+—08 A&£EH

PRI RE R L THE L A TR HI R R K E
MOKEBRSHIINT

Within one year —FNR 68,687 58,989
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF(BIEEREME) 243,299 160,027
After five years FaRGELEY 107,855 76,690

419,841 295,706

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no

RBERR - ARAABELLEHERH
T——F

operating lease arrangements (2011: Nil). (Z2—F &) -
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. EAREIE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in BRAPTsE27 R 2 A E FHE ARSI - A&
note 27 above, the Group had capital commitments in respect ERSEHEARYE  BRELRREBHEEE
of property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting AHEHE
period:

Contracted, but not provided for BRI B R B 4,363 6,772
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no REMEER - AR AWEEKE NFE
significant capital commitments (2011: Nil). (Z2—F :F) o
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

29. BABLXRS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (@) 7EAHME - BB SRS I m AT
financial statements, the Group had the following material MZHIN - NEBE R T T T
transactions with related parties during the year: WIE N
Purchase of leasehold improvement & & fH &2 0] 1,472 585
Professional expenses paid to TR FEEATZ
a related company BEEH (ii) - 2
Rental expenses paid to YR FEEARZ
a related company HERX (i) 1,032 1,032
Rental expenses paid to SN TEERARZ
a related company HERX (iv) 3,666 4,019

Notes: Jotz3

()  The selling price of the leasehold improvement was () THEMERBSHEEDNLCRAEERR
made at pre-determined prices agreed between the BHEFASBEMORIDBRA
Group and Chiu Kwun Engineering (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Al(MB# )R EMELETERE
(“Chiu Kwun”). Mr. Ku, a director of the Company, is the o ANREEE L RBHNE
beneficial owner of Chiu Kwun. mEBA

(i) In the prior year, the professional expenses were charged (iy  PALRIFE - C&W (Nominees) Ltd
by C&W (Nominees) Ltd. (“C&W”). Mr. Chan Chi Kwong, (TC&W ) WHHEEXER - A5EH
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group, is the AETHEARIMESRENELER
beneficial owner of C&W. CBWE A A ©

(il  The rental expenses were charged by Dongguan (i) EHEREEEREERA
Well Excellent Hotel Management Services Co., Ltd (figﬁﬁﬁbﬁz$’§@§ﬁ3%+wﬁ$
(“Dongguan Well Excellent”) at rates agreed between RAEMHSUWBREAERY - A2
the Group and Dongguan Well Excellent. Mr. Yip, Mr. Chan %%&Hﬁ?%f‘ﬁi . BﬁfiﬁE&E?ﬁ
and Mr. Ku, directors and shareholders of the Company, ENMARZHENEERBRE -
are also directors and shareholders of Dongguan Well
Excellent.

(v)  The rental expenses were charged by Meco Group vy EaEBERAR(ESEE]E
Company Limited (“Meco Group”) at rates agreed AEEHESEER BN UER
between the Group and Meco Group. Mr. Yip, Mr. Chan MEMX - ARAIEERRRESR
and Mr. Ku, directors and shareholders of the Company, £ REERERETREEEE
are also directors and shareholders of Meco Group. MEERRR REAFE Ea5%
During the year, Meco Group agreed to waive rental of ERERRAEEHAMNEERS
RMB781,000 for a premise rented by the Group. AR#781,0007T °

Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) EEEEEE S HREZBLER

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related
companies as at the end of the reporting period are
included in note 19 to the financial statements.

TNH e

$Ez
4+
|:|

HHR - AN E R TT R RE
BN IRRMFE9
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 73R ZH1 3T

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 29,

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

Details of directors’ and the chief executive’s remuneration
and five highest paid employees are included in notes 8
and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (i) and
(iv) above also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BEERS (&)

() KREFFBEEAE ZHIE:
BENSAEEAENE MAZES
FEENE D RIE N SRR T
819 -

Fh_Eat() ~ (i) B (iv)TE RV RS 5 22 5 INERK

FHRBE1AAGFTENBER HiHE

REER 5 o

RERE S 2EMIA

REERR > SEFROSHTEMER
(ERUNNE

Group KEE
Financial assets THEE
Trade receivables g 5 W EIE 10,119 8,403 - -
Financial assets included in 5+ AFEZRIE - 1%
prepayments, deposits & K& EfbfELL
and other receivables TEZCMEE
(note 18) (K1:218) 20,881 14,381 117 66
Cash and cash equivalents R4 NIREEE 265,405 293,567 1,017 2,069
296,405 316,351 1,134 2,135
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30. ®REHEsZERMTAE)
(Continued)
Group (Continued) NEE (&)
Financial liabilities THAE
Company
RAFE]
Financial liabilities at Financial liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
RBHEEAIERzeMAE REBEELKIEzeRAE
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F--F % =%T-=F TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETT AR%®TR AR®TT
Trade payables B SRR 39,789 33,696 - =
Amounts due to FES A& A RIZRIE
related companies 1,394 100 - -
Amounts due to S EEYNEIE /]
subsidiaries - - - 1,688
Financial liabilities included &+ A E.fth 1~ 3% 18
in other payables and REFRIEZ &
accruals (note 21) BB E(HE21) 66,081 40,929 1,006 373
107,264 74,725 1,006 2,061
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 73R Z<H1 3T

31. FAIR VALUE 31. A¥E
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the REBNAAG BT A ZRAELAF
Company’s financial instruments are as follows: BT :
Group rER
Financial assets SRMEE
Trade receivables B 5 WA 10,119 8,403 10,119 8,403

Financial assets included in & ATE{TERIE - I
prepayments, deposits & N Efb FEUL

and other receivables FIEZ SREE
(note 18) (H7a£18) 20,881 14,381 20,881 14,381
Cash and cash equivalents 54 &I & %(E 265,405 293,567 265,405 293,567
296,405 316,351 296,405 316,351
Financial liabilities SRaE
Trade payables B SRR 39,789 33,696 39,789 33,696
Amounts due to related  FE{TRE:E A B FIE
companies 1,394 100 1,394 100
Amounts due to FERTH B A Bk IE
subsidiaries - - - -
Financial liabilities included £t A EL b fE{~f 5118
in other payables and LT HREZS
accruals (note 21) ma&Emzo1) 66,081 40,929 66,081 40,929
107,264 74,725 107,264 74,725
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31. FAIR VALUE (Continued) 31. AV EE)

Company P N/NE]

Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets included s+ AFEZXIE -
in prepayments, deposits 1% & K& Hith e

and other receivables WA 2
(note 18) EREE
(#1:%18) 117 66 117 66
Cash and cash equivalents I8¢ N8 & (B 1,017 2,069 1,017 2,069
1,134 2,135 1,134 2,135
Financial liabilities sEas
Amounts due to JETB B A B FRIE
subsidiaries 1,688 - 1,688

Financial liabilities included &+ A EL b & (<) 218

in other payables and RIEETHIBEZ &
accruals (note 21) meEE21) 1,006 373 1,006 373
1,006 2,061 1,006 2,061

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, amounts due to related
companies, and amounts due to subsidiaries approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.

CREENBENATENRIANRE
AIHBERESEAZEETR2E® - M
RGBS B RIHE 2 2 EAHE © Bt AT
BEFRAATITERRR

RehReEFE BIFREA -EHE
3R ~ FEATANFRIR - e REMEK
RIBZEMEE  fTARMEN AN E
AARIEZERAE  BNBERRRIER
FEN B AR A FEERREEM
i TBEHNZFTAREHAZIE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #53R 7M1 3

32.

(RN

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances and short-term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, balances with related companies, trade payables
and other payables, which arise directly from the Group’s
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors
meet periodically to analyse and formulate measures to manage
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. It is the
Group’s policy not to enter into forward contracts until a firm
commitment is in place.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
Hong Kong Dollars exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s
equity.
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ARBEESRTABRERRS LIRITHERR
FEBER ZFERITAZTFERNR
RAKEXBERES - AEBNEZ R
HEEREBELEZREMEREENAE -
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POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

2012 —E—_—F

If Renminbi weakens against HK$ M A R X8 TRE
If Renminbi strengthens against HK$ ] A R EE 5 8 T FHE

2011 —F—%F

If Renminbi weakens against HK$ i A R & H, 78 TR E
If Renminbi strengthens against HK$ {4 A B IE H 76 T FHE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 32. ¢riEMREEBZERBUR(E)

IR B (4E)
5 (571) (571)
(5) 571 571
5 (2,366) (2,366)
) 2,366 2,366

*

Excluding retained profits
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise the Group’s
exposure to bad debts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 18 to
the financial statements.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans and overdrafts, obligations under finance leases and trust
receipt loans. The Group’s policy is to maintain the Group at a
net current asset position.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

32.

TREMEERERBKE(E)

RBESER

AEERAEREEUERBDESHETA
EREsRRORAR ZTAZEEY
kemITAReREE(NE S RWFIE)
ZEMBEARREEEXB ZAHARER

=
E -°

AEBEzZBRESBBERRITERLE
X MEHEEKLERRIEER - #5
BeHEMTRBEEM M2 T - A&E
ZHREEFAREGENRABEEFEL
AR ©

RIWERR - AEEepBENIHES
DERUATHEHNARFTRRIE - 250
o

Group &
Trade payables B S EMNTE - 39,789 39,789 - 33,696 33,696
Other payables and accruals E fth 58 )2

fEtToE - 66,081 66,081 - 40,929 40,929

Amounts due to related BRI BEEARIFIA
companies 1,394 - 1,394 100 - 100
1,394 105,870 107,264 100 74,625 74,725
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 32,

POLICIES (Continued)

TREREERBRREK(E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESR(E)
Company ¥ NN
Other payables HihfER A - 1,006 1,006 - 373 373
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE{Hf B A RIZIE - - 1,688 = 1,688
- 1,006 1,006 1,688 373 2,061
Capital management BEXREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits as
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and risk associate with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance the overall capital structure of the Group through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as raising of
new bank loans.
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33. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

During the current year, certain revenue, interest income,
finance costs and general administrative expenses have
been reclassified in the Group’s segment information. In the
opinion of the Company’s directors, such reclassification better
reflects the underlying nature of those income and expenses.
Accordingly, certain comparative amounts in segment
information have been reclassified to conform with the current
year’s presentation.

34. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 22 March 2013.

@ TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE'= (HPEN) AR A |
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Summary Financial Information
AR E

AEERBOIAEARBEFENRERE - AR
BE - BENIFERER - TEEE K TIE
BRI BIMR MR ERRZA

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements and the
Prospectus, is set out below.

RESULTS ES |

Revenue Wz 824,712 746,203 606,529 449,890 393,309
Other income and gain, net  E AU A K Ui z5 %58 18,386 14,508 11,564 7,821 6,777
Cost of inventories consumed B 7S A (338,536)  (306,332)  (260,384)  (194,262)  (187,143)
Staff costs R (206,917)  (173,126)  (133,:338)  (98,059)  (80,392)
Depreciation of items of ME - BE R&EEE

|property, plant and e

equipment (39,800)  (31,405)  (27.950)  (21.499)  (15,345)
Utilities and consumables AR S KOBFER (52,362) (46,137) (37,455) (28,858) (26,974)
Rental and related expenses 184 RiAER S (72,773) (60,937) (45,287) (31,883) (24,856)
Listing and related expenses £ & AARER - (13,697) (2,098) (4,386) =
Other expenses Hibpx (57,453) (53,772) (41,242) (30,829 (27,012)
Finance costs A AR - (688) (204) = =
Profit before tax MR A E A 75,257 74,707 70,135 47,935 38,364
Income tax expense FERE% (20425)  (23981) (23604 (15939  (12,501)
Profit for the year KEEEH 54,832 50,726 46,531 31,996 25,863
Attributable to: THIRELh -
Owners of the Company RRFHER A 54,832 50,726 46,531 31,240 25,322
Non-controlling interests FEFERR R - - - 756 541

54,832 50,726 46,531 31,996 25,863
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE - AERFERES
INTERESTS

As at 31 December
R+=ZHA=+—H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

—§-=F -T-—% -T-TF “FTTAF -TINF

—=< =<

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR AREBTT ARETT ARETE ARETT

Total assets BEEE 500,161 455,404 272,367 217,004 177,273
Total liabilities afERE (135,107) (116,145) (134,123) (138,224) (113,686)
Non-controlling interests TR - - - - (1,110)

365,054 339,259 138,244 78,780 62,477
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